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Notice to the Shareholders

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Seventh (47th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of
NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED will be held on Saturday 28th September 2024 at 12:30 p.m.
IST through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements including the Balance Sheet of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with all the notes annexed and
the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon, placed before the meeting, be and are hereby considered
and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vimal Prakash [DIN : 00174915] who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

Place :Kolkata By Order of the Board
Date 05t September 2024 Nilachal Refractories Limited
Niraj Jalan

Director
Din: 00551970
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NOTES:

. The General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7,
2023 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) including earlier circulars
issued in this regard, (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Circulars”), Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi,
Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015 (the
‘Listing Regulations’) the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed
venue for the AGM shall be 30D, J L Nehru Road, Kolkata--700016

. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting or other
applicable e-voting during AGM.

. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members
on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2%
or more shareholding),Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020
the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remotee-Voting system as well
as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated Aprill3, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.nilachal.in.The
Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at
http://www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for
providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
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7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCACircular
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

8. The Register of the Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Sunday,
22" September 2024 to Saturday 28™ September 2024 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provision
of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday 25th September 2024 , at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Friday 27th
September 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The
Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date)
i.e. 21st September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 21st September 2024.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in

demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
Type of shareholders | Login Method

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
Shareholders holding NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
securities in demat Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click
mode with NSDL. on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is

available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will promptyou to
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
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register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the
icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open.You
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. Aftersuccessful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you will
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR
code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App Is avallable an

.. Google Play

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with CDSL

. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can

login through their existing user id and password. Option
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com
and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then
user your existing my easi username & password.

. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.comand click
on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on
registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able
to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders (holding | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL
securities in demat for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-
mode) login through Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
their depository NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,
participants wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL. and CDSL..

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

securities in demat mode with NSDL | NSDL  helpdesk by  sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
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securities in demat mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 or 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user
ID is IN3QQ***] 2%k

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. _ ) _
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[ 2 AFAA A AR EXEX then your user ID is

12**************
c¢) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001%***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password
to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force
you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

6] If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The
.pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyou are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast vyour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL. e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to csrajasingh2014@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.com.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload
Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares
of the Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 21st September,2024, may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already

registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password
for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot
User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 . In case of
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and

becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the
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cut-off date i.e. 21st September,2024 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM
underStep 1 :“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request
to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id

and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to es@nilachal.in.

. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
cs@nilachal.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and

joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.comfor procuring user id

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.

2.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above
for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.
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4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-

Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join
General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link
placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the
notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at cs@nilachal.in latest by 05:00 p.m. (IST) on Saturday, 21st
September 2024.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
cs@nilachal.in latest by 05:00 p.m. (IST) on Saturday, , 21st September 2024.The same will be
replied by the company suitably.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the
next speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a
device with a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as
appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM.
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10. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre,
Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 990 / 1800 22 44 30.

By order of the Board

For Nilachal Refractories Limited

Place: Kolkata NIRAJ JALAN

Date: 05-09-2024 (Director)
DIN: 00551970

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT /RE-APPOINTMENT IN
FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

As required by regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, the particular of Director who is proposed to be re-appointed is given below:

Particulars Mr. Vimal Prakash

Date of Birth 28TH October 1951

Date of Appointment 06 May 2006

Qualification Ceramic Engineer

Expertise in specific functionalare = [More than 35 years of
experience

Directorship held in other Public INIL

company

Membership/Chairmanship of INIL

committees of other public
companies (includes only Audit
committees and Stakeholders
relationship Committee.)
Number of shares held in the 3,62,500 [Three Lakhs
Company Sixty Two Thousand
Five Hundred Only]
The listed entity from which Director | NIL

has resigned in last three years

—
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DIRECTOR REPORT

Dear Members,

Nilachal Refractories Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Forty Seventh (47th) Annual Reports together with the
Audited accounts of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: (Rupees in crores)
Particul Year ended ear ended
articuiars 31stMarch2024  [31stMarch 2023
Turnover 3.14 1.09
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation and
tavation ) P (063) (125)
Less: Depreciation (0.56) (0.65)
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (1.20) (1.90)
Less: Tax Expense (Deferred Tax) 5.29 (0.10)
Profit/(Loss) after tax (6.49) (1.79)
Add: Balance B/F from the previous year (33.43) (31.64)
Less: Adjustment for Prior Period 0 0
Depreciation
Balance Profit/ (Loss) C/F to the next year (39.92) (33.43)
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Your Company is making all-round efforts for its revival and the prospects of such efforts should bear
fruits in the Financial Year 2024-25.

The Directors are quite hopeful that the operations of your Company will improve henceforth
compared to past unforeseen difficult period.

During the year, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

DIVIDEND:

In view of brought forward losses, your directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

SN
N




TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount was transferred to Reserves during the F.Y. 2023-24.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company has no holding, subsidiary or associate Company therefore disclosures in this regard have
not been provided in this Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between
the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All related party transactions that were entered during the year were in the ordinary course of business and
were on arm’s length basis. There were no materially significant related party transactions enteredby the
Company during the year with the Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons which
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

The policy on related party transactions as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
is hosted on the website of the Company i.e. www.nilachal.in

Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and
were on arm’s length basis, therefore the requirement of furnishing the details in Form AOC-2 is not
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the year under review the Company has not provided any loan, given any guarantee or made
any investment governed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS,
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going
concern status of the Company’s operation in future.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of

unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a
comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by the Board from time
to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk through
means of a properly defined framework.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and Article 115 of the Article of Association
of the company, Mr. Vimal Prakash, Director of the company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer himself for reappointment.

The independent directors have submitted the declaration of independence, pursuant to Section 149(7) of
the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Krishna Chandra Pusti, Manager, Mr. Ashish Kumar Bhalotia, Company Secretary and Mr.
Dukhabandhu Prusty, Chief Financial Officer are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of Section(s) 2(51), 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year under review, the board met Seven times i.e.

. | Date Of | PRADIP KUMAR | SRIBASH BINDU SUNDARESAN VIMAL RAMESH KUMAR | BHAGWATI NIRA] | VINAY
No BM MOHAPATRA CHANDRAMISHRA JAIN RADHEKRISHNAN PRAKASH DHANDHANIA PRASAD JALAN JALAN AGARWAL
1| 23/05/23 YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
2 | 30/05/23 - YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
3 18/07/23 YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
4 | 14/08/23 YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
5 19/10/23 YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
6 | 14/11/23 - YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES
7 | 13/02/24 YES YES YES YES YES YES YES YES

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The details with respect to Committee Meetings and attendance thereat have been provided in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The Company’s Annual Return in form MGT-7 can be viewed on the Company’s website at
http://www.nilachal.in

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial relations at Dhenkanal Plant of the Company remained harmonious and cordial during the

year under review. The Directors wish to convey their sincere appreciation for the cooperation and
support provided by the employees of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RESPOSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your "Directors" hereby confirm

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and of the profit/loss of the Company for
that period;

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accountingrecords
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the assetsof the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were agdequate and operating effectively;
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f) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Your Company comes under the provisions of the rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel)Rules, 2014, there by the Company Secretary was paid 1,81,000/- and the Chief
Financial Officer was paid Rs. 2,31,000/-.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN
PERFORMANCE, ITS DIRECTORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES

The Companies Act 2013, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
stipulates the performance evaluation of the Directors including Chairman, Board and its committees
considering the said provisions the Company has devised the process and the criteria for the performance
evaluation which has been recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by the Board.

The Criteria for performance evaluation are as under :-

Attendance at meeting; Participation and Contribution; Responsibility towards stakeholders;
Contribution in Strategic Planning; Compliance and Governance; Participation, Updating of Knowledge;
Leadership; Relationships and Communications; resources; Conduct of Meetings.

Performance Evaluation of Board:-

Composition and Diversity of Board; Committees of the Board; Board & Committee Meetings; Understanding of
the Business of the Company and Regulatory environment; Contribution to effective corporate governance and
transparency in Company's Operation; deliberation/decisions on the Company's Strategies; Monitoring and
implementation of the strategies and the executive management performance and quality of decision making.

Performance Evaluation of the Board Level Committees:-

The performance and effectiveness of the Committee, Frequency and duration, spread of talent and
diversity in the Committee; Understanding of regulatory environment and development; interaction with
the board.

Fraud Reporting (Required by Companies Amendment Bill, 2014)
No case of fraud has been reported to the Audit Committee or Board during the year.

AUDIT AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

At the 46t AGM held on 11/11/2023, M/s. Jain Saraogi & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 305004E) were appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of Five
Years, starting from the Financial Year 2023-24 to 2027-28.

The Statutory Auditors on the financial statement for the financial year 2023-2024 forms part of the
annual report, the Statutory Auditors have expressed qualified opinion which is self explanatory and
management assures necessary action towards the same including carrying out necessary strategic
decisions i.e. diversify its business which can be carried on in alignment with the industry, its operating.
Further the Management is trying to rope in investors.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The Company appointed Ms. Twinkle Agarwal, Company Secretary in Practice and her report is
annexed herewith.
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BOARD’S COMMENTS ON AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditors observations and remarks are explanatory and the management has taken note of the fact
that the impairment of the Property, Plant and Equipment need to be carried out and will undertake
measures to carry out the same in due course. Hence does not require any clarifications.

The management has taken note that the actuarial valuation for the provision for employee benefits needs
to be done and the same will be done in due course however the impact if any will be insignificantkeeping
in mind the number of employees and provision already accounted for.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT
Maintenance of cost records and cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The constitution of the Audit Committee, Terms of Reference and the dates on which meetings of the Audit
Committee were held are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report for FY’23-24 forming a part of
this Annual Report.

ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE ETC

Information pursuant to section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earning and Outgo is given in Annexure - I, forming part of this Report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT AT WORKPLACE

Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every woman employee
is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero-tolerance towards sexual harassment and any
act of sexual harassment invites serious disciplinary action. During the year under review there were no
cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company.

INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

During the year under review the Company has not employed any women and hence setting up of internal
complaints committee is not required.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and pursuant to
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has
established a mechanism through which all the stakeholders can report the suspected frauds and genuine
grievances to the appropriate authority. The Whistle Blower Policy which has been approved bythe Board
of Directors of the Company has been hosted on the website of the Company
http: /nilachal.in/head of policies.html. During the year under review, the Company has not received any
complaint(s) under this policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed in maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adheres to
the stipulations prescribed under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015.
A Report on Corporate Governance & Shareholders Information together with an Auditors'Certificate
regarding Compliance of the same are annexed as a part of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT:

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Management Discussion & Analysis Report is presented in a separate section, forms a part of the Annual
Report. An
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Management continuously reviews the Internal Control Systems and procedures for the efficient
conduct of the Company's business. The Company adheres to the prescribed guidelines with respect to
the transactions, financial reporting and ensures that all its assets are safeguarded and protected against
losses. Internal Control System are implemented to safeguard the Company's assets from loss or damage
, to keep a constant check on the cost structure, to prevent revenue leakages, to provide adequate financial
and accounting controls and implement accounting standards.

The Board has appointed a Chartered Accountant firm who are conducting the Internal Audit of the
Company. The report thereof is placed before the Audit Committee.

INSURANCE

The assets of the Company are adequately insured against the loss of fire and other risks which are
considered necessary by the management.

DEPOSITS
Your company has not accepted any public deposit during the year under review.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, your Company has neither increased its authorized capital nor issued any
shares.

LISTING

The equity shares of your Company continued to be listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and
Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Corporate Social Responsibility is the continuing commitment by the business to behave ethically and
contribute to economic development while improving the quality of life of the workforce and their
families as well as of the local community and society at large.

As a part of its policy for corporate social responsibility, the Company undertakes a range of activities to
improve living conditions of the people in the neighbourhood of all its plants. In structuring its efforts to
the various aspects of Corporate Social Responsibilities, the Company takes account in guidelines and
statements issued by stakeholders and other regulatory bodies. Corporate Social Responsibility and
Sustainable development will continue to be the leading priorities at the Company which it shall
consistently strive to touch lives and make a difference.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation for the assistance, support and guidance provided by
Company's Customers, Suppliers, Government Authorities, Bankers, investors, financial institution and
shareholders for their consistent support to the company. The Directors also commend the continuing
commitment and dedication of the employees at all levels which has been critical for the Company's
growth. The Directors look forward for their continuing support in future.

For and on behalf of the Board

Niraj Jalan Director
DIN: 00551970

Place: Kolkata
Date : 5th September 2024
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ANNEXURES TO DIRECTORS ' REPORT

ANNEXURE-1

Information under section 134(3)(m) read with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:-
(a) Energy conservation measures taken:

The Company is committed to conserve energy and making best use of its resources. A
considerable amount of time and effort will be earmarked for conserving power across all
our plants.

@) Idle running of Machines has been controlled

(i1) Operating efficiency of Shaft Kiln has been improved.

(1i1) Successful simultaneous operation of two Gas producers to fire increased green
production and bring down the specific consumption of coal.

(b) Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for the
reduction of consumption of energy:

No additional investment is proposed but all efforts are on to conserve energy by
improving operation.

Constant reviews of operations and process is being done to identify energy saving
areas.

(c) Impactofthe measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption
and consequent impact on cost of production of goods.

With the implementation of the above measures, there will be considerable reduction in energy
consumption.

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption Impact of the measures at(a)and
(b) above for reduction of energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of
production as per Form A of the Annexure is annexed.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

The details of the efforts made towards absorption of technology are given separately in the
Report in Form B.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUT GO:
Foreign Exchange Earning: Rs. NIL

Foreign Exchange Out Go: Rs. NIL

Form-A

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

A. Power and fuelconsumption:

Paticulars 2023-2024 {2022-2023 | 2021-2022
1) Electricity

(a) Purchased Units( KVAH) 178464 165000 165960
Total Amount(Rs) 1831724 | 1695189 1756001

Rate per unit (in Rs./KVAH) 10.26 1027 10.58

(b) Own Generation
Through Diesel Generator Unit
(KVAH)
Unit per Ltr. of Diesel oil - - -
Cost/Unit (Rs.)

Through Steam Turbine
Generator

2.)Steam Coal Grade ‘B’ and E used
in Gas Producer
Quantity (Tonnes)
Total Cost (RS) N.A N.A N.A
Average Rate(Rs/MT)
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Furnace 0Oil & L.D.Oil
Quantity (KL)

3)

Total Amount (Rs.)

Average Rate

LSHS Other Internal Generation

N.A

N.A

N.A

B.

Consumption per unit of production

Particulars

2023-2024

2022-2023

2021-2022

1) Refractories Produced (MT)

2) Electricity (KVAH/Ton)

3) Furnace oil & L.D Oil (Litres/Ton)
4 LSHS (Kg/Ton)

Steam Coal (Gross) Grade B &
E(KG/Ton)

5) Net Coal after dust (Kg/Ton)

750

237.95

375

437.00

852

194.79
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Form B
FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Research and Development (R&D)
1. Specific areas in which R&D was carried out by the Company:
No R & D was carried out within the meaning of applicable standard.

2. Benefits derived as a results of the above R &D
Not Applicable

3. Future plan of action:

Your Company recognizes the need for cleaner and greener environment by
taking various conservation measures, reduction of emission of harmful
substances in the environment, reduction in wastages and various other useful
measures. It further plans to improve its productivity and quality.

4. Expenditure onR &D
Nil

“u

Technology absorption, adaption and innovation N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board

NIRAJ JALAN
DIN : 00551970
Director

Place: Kolkata

Date: 05-09-2024
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ANNEXURE -V
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company’s philosophy on code of governance

The basic objective of corporate governance policies adopted by the Company is to attain the highest
levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely to meet with the
statutory requirements but to go beyond them by putting into place procedures and systems, in
accordance with best practices of governance. Your Company believes that Good Corporate Governance
enhances the trust and confidence of all the stakeholders. Good practice in corporate behavior helps to
enhance and maintain public trust in companies and stock market.

Your Company reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that they reflect the latest
developments in the corporate arena positioning itself to conform to the best corporate governance
practice. Your Company is committed to pursue excellence in all its activities and maximize its
shareholders’ wealth.

The Company's corporate governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:-

e To recognize the respective roles and responsibilities of the Board and Management.

e To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels
e To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning

e To give the highest importance to investor relations

e To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls

e To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them in
their conduct

e To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent

e To ensure that the company follows globally recognized Corporate governance practices

1) BOARD OF DIRECTORS :

The Board is headed by a Non-Executive Directors. As on 31° March, 2024 the Board comprised of Nine(9)
Directors, out of which Five are Independent Directors, Four are Non-Executive Directors and theCompany
has a Manager. The Composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity with the Corporate Governance
code. None of the Director is a member of more than ten committees or Chairman of more than five
committees, across all the Companies in which he is a Director. None of the independent director is a
director of more than seven listed companies The Board functions as a full Board and through committees.
The Board of Directors and Committee meet at regular intervals. Every director of the Company is over
twenty one years of age. The Board ensures the desired level of independence in functioning and decision-
making. Moreover all the Non-Executive Directors are eminent professionals, and bring the wealth of their
professional expertise and experience to the management of the Company.
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Composition of Board of Directors and details of their shareholding in the Company

The Composition of the Board of Directors

The details of composition of the Board, Director's attendance at the Board Meetings and at the last
Annual General Meeting, as on 31 March, 2024 are given hereunder:

Name of Director Category Relationship with | Date of | Date of | Attendance In | Attendance in last
other Director Joining Resignation BM AGM
Mr.Bhagwati Prasad Non-Executive Father of Niraj Jalan 19th Dec 7 YES
Jalan Director 2005
Mr. Niraj Jalan Non-Executive Son of Bhagwati | 06th  May 7 YES
Director Prasad Jalan 2006
Mr. Vimal Prakash Non-Executive Director 06th  May 7 YES
2006
Mr. Sribash Chandra Independent Director 31st Jan 7 YES
Mishra 2007
Mr. Ramesh Kr | Independent Director 01st Feb 7 YES
Dhandhania 2014
Mr. S. Radhakrishnan Independent Director 25th Nov 7 YES
2014
Mrs. Bindu Jain Independent Director 25th Mar 7 YES
2015
Mr. Pradeep Kr | Independent Director 14th Feb 5 YES
Mohapatra 2018
Mr. Vinay Kumar | Non-Executive Director 23rd July 5 YES
Agarwal 2020

None of the Directors of the company holds Directorship in any other Listed Company therefore details
for the same has not been furnished.

All the Independent directors of the Company have provided declaration that they qualify the conditions
of their being independent. All such declarations were/are placed before the Board.

Board Procedures

(a)

Number of Board Meetings held, dates on which held

During the year under review, Seven board meetings were held, the dates on which the meetings were held

are as follows:

Tuesday, May 23, 2023

Tuesday, May 30, 2023

Tuesday, July 18, 2023

Monday, August 14, 2023

Thursday, October 19, 2023

Tuesday, November 14, 2023

Tuesday, February 13, 2024

The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings held during the year was not more than one hundred and

twenty days.

(b) The information made available to the Board includes the following

1. Annual Operating Plans and budgets and any updates.
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Capital budgets and any updates
Quarterly results for the Company and its operating divisions or business segments.

Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board.

LA R

Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the board level
including appointment or removal of CFO and the Company Secretary.

o

Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices which are materially important.

7. Fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems,
if any

8. Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-payment
for goods sold by the Company.

9. Any issue which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including
any judgment or order which may have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken
an adverse view regarding another enterprise that can have negative implications on the
Company.

10. Details of any joint venture, acquisition of companies or collaboration agreement.
11. Transaction that involves substantial payment towards goodwill brand equity or intellectual
property.

12. Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development on Human
Resource/ Industrial Relation front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary
Retirement Scheme etc.

13. Sale of material “nature, of investments, assets” which is not in the normal course of business

14. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the
risk of adverse exchange rate movements, if material.

15. Non- Compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders services
such as non - payment of dividends, delay in share transfer etc.

The Board also periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company, prepared
by the designated employees as well as steps taken to rectify instances of non- compliance.

(A) Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel

The Board of Directors had adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel. This Code helps the Company to maintain the Standard of Business Ethics and ensure
compliance with the legal requirements, specifically under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Code is aimed at preventing any wrongdoing and promoting ethical
conduct at the Board and Senior Management level.

The declaration regarding Compliance with the code of conduct as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is appended to this report.

(B) Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading
The Company has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading in accordance with the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The Company
Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer. All the Directors and Senior Management Personnel
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and such other designated employees of the Company who are expected to have the access to
unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company are covered under the said code. The
Directors, their relatives, senior management personnel, designated employees etc are restricted from
purchasing, selling and dealing in the shares while being in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information about the Company during certain prohibited periods.

(C) Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for the Board of Directors and the senior management of
the Company and all of them has affirmed compliances of the same. The Policy has also been hosted on
the website of the Company (www.nilachal.in).

(D) Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has formulated a whistle blower policy with a view to provide a mechanism for employees
of the Company to approach the Chairman of Audit Committee. The Identity of the Whistle Blower shall

be kept confidential to the extent possible and permitted under the law. The functioning of the policy
mechanism is reviewed audit committee on half yearly basis and by board on annual basis.

(E) Composition of Board Committees

Audit Committee Stakeholders Relationship Committee Nomination and Remuneration
Committee
Mr. S.C.Mishra-Chairman Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania - Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania-
Chairman Chairman
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Mr. S.C.Mishra Mr. S.C.Mishra
Dhandhania Member Member Member
Mrs. Bindu Jain- Mr. S.Radhakrishnan
Mrs. Bindu Jain Member Member
Member
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2024 comprised of the following four directors:

1. Mr.S.C.Mishra- Chairman
2. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania- Member
3. Mrs. Bindu Jain- Member

Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the committee. Mr. S.C. Mishra; Mr. Ramesh Kumar
Dhandhania; Mrs. Bindu Jain are Independent Directors.
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The Committee comprises of eminent professionals with expert knowledge in corporate finance. The
Minutes of each audit committee meeting are placed before and discussed by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

b) Meeting of Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Committee held Seven meetings, the dates of the meetings being
23/05/2023, 30/05/2023, 18/07/2023, 14/08/2023, 19/10/2023, 14/11/2023, 13/02/2024. The
maximum gap between any two Meetings of Audit held during the year was not more than one hundred
and twenty days.

Sl. No. | Name of the Member Designation | Number of Meetings attended
1 Mr. S.C.Mishra Chairman 7
2 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania Member 7
3 Mrs. Bindu Jain Member 7

c) Powers of the Audit Committee

The powers of the Audit Committee include the following:

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

To seek information from any employee

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary

PwnNPE

d) Function of Audit Committee
The role of the Audit committee includes the following

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference to :

(i) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included
in the Board’s Report in terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii)  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same
(iii) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
(iv) Disclosure of any related party transactions

3. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy
of the internal control systems.

4. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up
5. Reviewing, the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors

6. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post — audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

7. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee

8. The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following
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i. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and result of operation

ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee),
submitted by the management.

iii. Management letters/letters of internal control weakness issued by the statutory auditors;

iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
As per sec 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations andDisclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board has set up a Nomination & Remuneration Committee whose
roles are:
i)  Formulation of criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommends to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of directors, key
managerial persons and other employees

ii)  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in the senior
management.

iv) Devising a policy on Board diversity.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee as on 31 March, 2024 comprised of:

1. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania- Chairman
2. Mr.S.C. Mishra- Member
3. Mr. S Radhakrishnan- Member

Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.
The Company is in Compliance of the same and the Committee oversees the following

a) To oversee the framing, review and implementation of Company’s overall compensation structure and
related polices on remuneration packages payable to the WTDs/ MD & CEO and other staff including
performance linked incentives, perquisites etc. with a view to attracting, motivating and retaining
employees and review compensation levels vis-a-vis other companies.

During the year under review the Committee met two time, the date of the meetings being 19/10/2023,
13/02/2024.

Sl. No. | Name of the Member Designation | Number of Meetings attended
1 Mr.Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania | Chairman 2
2 Mr. S.C.Mishra Member 2
3 Mr. S Radhakrishnan Member 2
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Evaluation of Performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors

Details with regard to evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors have been
furnished in the Directors’ Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee specifically looks into issues such as redressing of
shareholders’ and investors’ complaints such as transfer of shares, ensuring expeditious redressal.

This Committee comprises of the following Directors.

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania - Chairman
Mr. S.C.Mishra - Member
Mrs. Bindu Jain - Member

Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee reviews and redresses all the grievances periodically and
meets as and when required.
During the year under review the Committee met One time, the date of the meetings being 28/12/2023.

Sl. No. | Name of the Member Designation | Number of Meetings attended
1 Mr.Ramesh Kumar Dhandhania | Chairman 1
2 Mr. S.C.Mishra Member 1
3 Mr. S Radhakrishnan Member 1

The details of the Compliance officer are given below:

Compliance Officer

Mr. Vimal Prakash
Email: cs@nilachal.in, info@nilachal.in

During the period under review one meeting of the Committee was held on 28" December, 2023.

The Company has appointed M/s S K Infosolutions Pvt Ltd, as its Share Transfer Agent for both physical
and demat segment of equity shares.

The Company obtains half-yearly certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice confirming the issue of
certificates for transfer, sub-division, consolidation etc., and submits a copy thereof to the Stock
Exchanges in terms of Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Compliance
Certificate under Regulation 7(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 confirming that all activities in
relation to both physical and electronic share transfer facility are maintained by Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent registered with the Board is also submitted to the Stock Exchanges on a half yearly basis.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

During the year under review, separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 09" March
2024, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and members of the Management, inter alia,
to evaluate:
e Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
e Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive
Director and Non-Executive Directors;
e The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

All the Independent Directors attended the Meeting.

SUBSIDIARIARY COMPANIES

The company does not have any subsidiary/subsidiaries within the meaning of the Companies
act, 2013.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(A) Related Party Transactions

There were no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transaction or relationships
between the Company and its directors, promoters or the management that may have potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large except the details of transactions disclosed on accounts forming
part of the Accounts as required under Accounting Standard 18 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, and all related party transactions are negotiated on an arm’s length basis.

All details relating to financial and commercial transactions, where directors may have potential interest
are provided to the Board and the interested Directors neither participated in the discussion nor do they
vote in such matters. The Audit Committee of the Company also reviews related party transactions
periodically. The policy for dealing with related party transactions has been hosted on the website of the
Company. The weblink for the same is:

http://nilachal.in/pdf/head-of-policy/Policy%200n%20related%20Party%20Transcations.pdf

B. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company follows Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
in preparation of financial statements, the Company has not adopted a treatment different from that
prescribed in any Accounting Standard.

(B) Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report is appended to this report.
(C) Directors

As per the Companies Act, 2013 at least 2/3™ of the Board should consist of retiring Directors, of these at
least 1/3™ are required to retire every year.
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Directors are liable to retire by rotation as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Vimal
Prakash will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re
appointment.

(D) Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

There was no case or incident under the said act.

(E) Communication to shareholders

The unaudited quarterly/ half yearly financial statements are announced within forty five days of the end
of the quarter. The aforesaid financial statements are taken on record by the Board of Directors and are

communicated to the stock exchange where the shares of the company are listed.

The audited annual results are announced within two months from the end of the last quarter as stipulated
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Both the unaudited as well as the audited financial results of the Company are also hosted on its website
i.e. http://www.nilachal.in

(F) Investors’ Grievances and Share Transfer

As mentioned earlier, the Company has a Board-level Investors Grievance Committee to examine and
redress shareholders and investors’ complaints. The status on complaints and share transfers is reported
to the Committee.

For matters regarding shares transferred in physical form, share certificates, change of address etc
shareholders should send in their communications to S K Infosolutions Pvt.Ltd., our registrar and share
transfer agent. Their address is given in the section on shareholder information.

(G) Details of Non- Compliances

The company is regular in complying with statutory rules and regulations and no penalties or strictures
have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any
matter related to Capital Markets. However, the stock exchange has imposed a penalty for a late
compliance issue specifically related to Regulation 7(1) about appointing a Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer.

(H) General Body Meetings

The location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during the preceding three years are given
below:

Year Venue Day & Date Time
2020-21 Video Conferencing | Wednesday, 29" September, 2021 12:30 PM
2021-22 Video Conferencing | Wednesday, 28" September, 2022 12:30 PM
2022-23 Video Conferencing Saturday, 11" November, 2023 12:30 PM

(1) Special Resolution and Resolution through Postal Ballots

In the 46" AGM of the Company held on 11" November 2023:
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There are no special resolutions and resolutions passed through the postal ballot.
In the 45 AGM of the Company held on 28" September 2022:
There are no special resolutions and resolutions passed through the postal ballot.
In the 44" AGM of the Company held on 29%" September 2021:

There are no special resolutions and resolutions passed through the postal ballot.

(J) Proceeds from public Issue/ Preferential Allotment
During the year under review there was no issue brought out by the Company.
(K) CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the certificate
from Dukhabandhu Prusty, Chief Financial Officer was placed before the Board of Directors.
(L) Compliance with Corporate Governance Norms

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as
enumerated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(M) Auditors Report on Corporate Governance

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the auditors’
certificate is given as an annexure to the Directors Report

1. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION:

1 28th September 2024
At 12:30 P.M via VC/OAVM

2 22nd September 2024 to 28th September 2024 (both days
inclusive)

3 No dividend is recommended by the Board of Directors for the
year

4 The Company’s equity Shares are listed on the following Stock
Exchanges-

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street , Mumbai — 400 001

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association. Limited
7, Lyons Range
Kolkata — 700 001

5. The annual listing fees has been paid to the aforesaid Stock
Exchanges for the Financial Year 2023-24.
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Calcutta Stock Exchange — Scrip Code 19120Bombay Stock
Exchange - Scrip Code 502294

ISIN:- INE416N01013

Custodians:-1. Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL)
2.National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)

RTA:- S K Infosolutions Pvt.Ltd.
D/42, Katju Nagar Colony, PO & PS-
Jadavpur, KOLKATA, West Bengal,
India - 700032

10

Registered Office:- Plot No- P598/599 , Kedarnath Apartment,
Mahabir Nagar,Lewis Road,
Bhubaneswar-751 002,0disha

11

Works:-Nilachal Refractories Limited ,
Ipitata Nagar , Dhenkanal 759 025
Odisha

12

Corporate Office:- 30D, J L Nehru Road, Kolkata-700016, West
Bengal

13

Investors/shareholders can correspond with the RTA and
directly to the Registered Office /Corporate Office of the
company or may e-mail to the Company in this mail id:

cs@nilachal.in

Stock Price Data

Year/ Month BSE
(inRs.)
High Low

2023

April 39.00 32.50
May 40.99 31.80
June 40.00 34.37
July 39.00 29.60
August 48.50 33.55
September 45.00 37.11
October 45.50 36.31
November 46.35 37.26
December 57.30 36.45
2024

January 49.50 38.88
February 69.14 38.00
March 112.00 62.05
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Distribution of Shareholding as at 31st March 2024

(i) According to Category of Holding:
(A) | Promoter Group Shareholders No. of | % of total | No. of | % of total
Shareholders | number of | sharesheld | number of
shareholders shares

DIR.RELV. 22 00.50 5572657 27.37
PROM.COM. 8 00.18 8804865 43.24
Sub-total(A) 30 00.68 14377522 70.61

(B) | Non-Promoters Shareholders

(a) | MUT.FUND

(b) FIN. INST

(9] Insurance companies 1 00.02 15160 00.07

(d) NBFCs 0 00.00 0 00.00

(e) Foreign Portfolio 0 00.00 0 00.00

) Alternative investment funds 0 00.00 0 00.00

(g | FILLS 0 00.00 0 00.00

(h) Central Government/ State
Government(s)/ President of India

)] DOM. COM. 18 00.41 41368 00.20

1)} FOR. COM. 0 00.00 0 00.00

(k) RES. IND. 4324 98.27 5919272 29.07

M N.R. L 8 00.18 1131 00.01

(m) | NAL.BANK 0 00.00 0 00.00

(n) HUF 18 00.41 6797 00.03

M CLIENT MARGING TRADING 1 00.02 200 00.01
Sub-total (B) 4370 99.33 5983928 29.39
Total (A)+(B) 4400 100.00 20361450 100.00

ii) According to Number of Shares held: 31-03-2024

Shareholding Range No. of % of No. of % of
shareholders | Shareholders shares Shareholding

1-500 4194 95.318 385493 1.89

501-1000 115 2.614 88227 0.43

1001-2000 37 0.841 54259 0.27

2001-3000 7 0.159 17085 0.08

3001-4000 2 0.045 6284 0.03

4001-5000 1 0.023 4450 0.02

5001-10000 4 0.091 28215 0.14

10001-50000 7 0.159 232282 1.14

50001-100000 4 0.091 287500 141

100001 and above 29 0.659 19257655 94.58

Total 4400 100.00 20361450 100.00

Dematerialisation of Shares:

As stated earlier, the Company’ shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. As per the SEBI notifications, trading
in Company’s shares has been made compulsorily in dematerialized form w.e.f. 26" December, 2000 and
Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent have established connectivity with NSDL & CDSL.
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Auditors Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance
Code under (LODR) Regulations, 2015

RAJAN SINGH & Co

ﬂs PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES

mmﬂﬁﬂmmm

O

EMBERS OF
:&glll_ REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN-12693%0R 19TTPLCHI0TIS
P-598/599, KEDARNATH APARTMENT,
MAHABIR NAGAR LEWIS ROVAL,
KHORDHA, BHUBANESWAR,
ORISSA, INDIA, 751002

CHAL
| have examined  the compliance of conditicns of Corporste Governance by N-:.:Much,
REFRACTORIES LIMITED CiN- MIWIMS for the year ended ey
2024, as stipulsted in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Dhsclosure ummmm}nqduﬂ
mmwmmwnrmcﬂmmanmu.muﬂmﬁdm L
M R il

i iti fa the resporsibility of the Management.
Thmplmnlmdjmnfwlw " s
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and masnenance of htmﬂ“w;ﬂhlh
procedues 10 ensure mplhm:nimu:nnﬁlim of the Corparate Govemnance
Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility
i jon thereof, adopted by
i has been fimited to @ review of procedures and implementation
F;'lh}'?mmmtmhﬂ' ensuring l“r:c compliance of the conditions of l:.'-r:p:lw Governance as stipulated :1{
the said clause. It is neither an sudit mnﬂpﬁmaluqfdmmlil;ﬂ Ijmmmh
mcmprwnwmmmvuﬁl!:ynlmc-mpun or on efficiency or effectivencss
mmqnmﬁlumudmudﬂ:dtlhnfu:l:umm-

Opinion

ini understand based on the records, documents, books and cther
Mﬂﬁlﬂﬁ Tdinr:ﬂt lfmﬁidlnf'ud.i'l.u furnished by the Comparry and il.i_nl'l'u:::‘h:
murmlhntthcmyhcmplkdwﬂhmﬁﬁnmﬂcwmmummu
SEBl{LLtﬂn:ﬂHigui:muﬂMmm)ntgmzﬂls1numw
the Company, during the aforesaid period under scrutiny,

For RAJAN SINCH & COD

Flace: Konnagar
Dhate: BAOFTONA
DN FOIDSIFII13381

Peer Revies: 151177022
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RAJAN SINGH & Co
ﬂs PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES

CERTIFICATE OF KON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECT

_ ; RS

ipursuaant to Aeguiation 2471} wndl Schedwle V Para © clause (1007 of the SEB] (Livting (M igarions o Diselamre Eeguineme s
Reywlationy, 201 5)

1 W

The Membsrs of

MILACHAL REFRCATORIES LIMITED

I N-LE6930 R I FTTPLOOTAS

Ps9kiE09, KEDARNATH APARTMENT.

sEAlABIR NAGAR LEWIES ROAD,

EHMORDIEA, BHUBANESW AR, DRESSA, INDLA, 751082

1, have examingid the relevont regisiers, reconls, forma, reters and disclosures rocgived Trom tse Direcions of NTLACHAL REFRACTORIES
LAMITED baving C1M = LESSAGORI9TTPLCDONTIS and havisg registened oflice 81 P- 398399, KEDARNATH APARTMENT, MAHABIR
MAGAR LEWLS ROAD, KHORDHLA, BHUBANESW AR, DRISSA, INDLA, 741002  (hereinafier refierned 40 & ‘the Company “), produced
helione. mive by e Company for the purpose of Tisuing this Centificale, in accandance with Reguletion 143} read with Schedule W Parn-C Sub
clause L0 of the Securitics Exchange Doard of Inde [ Listing Obligaiioes and Disclosure Reqrirements Hoegpalations, 203

In my opinkn and 1o the best of sy isformstion and secording Lo the werifications [including Mirectors Fdemtification Mamter (TR} slatus ol
thie poeal [wwsw IRCALEEV.IN] 08 sonsidened necessary ond explanstions fisrnished te me by the Campany & s efficers, | kereby certify thal
e e the Dineelors o the Basnd of the Company & aed below For the Fimancial Year cnding an 31% March, 3624 bave bees debarred or
disualified from being oppobmed or comiming as Diredons of the Compamy by e Seruriticd and Exchange Board of Indin, MEstary of
Corparais A fairs or any sch ciher Satoioey Autharity:

Er. Mo Name of Dircctor ' DiN Date of appuintment n
= =
1. FRADIF KUMAR MOUATATRA BROGTOHT 14M12018
2 ERIBASH CHARDEA MISHEA EELELT JL T
1. [mINDU JAIN OTISIER 24037101 5 |
4. RUMDARESAN RADIAKRISHMNAN BRI § 2541175014
5. WIRAL PRAKASH Do1TE01S 55200
& MESH KUMAR DHANDHANIA 1375424 L2814
T Em.mg.-.-m FRASAD JALAN OEESEAEE 1971272004
K NIRAS JALAN BUSS19TO 405200 _
5, VINAY AGARWAL 02341559 | LM REH

Eswuring ih sligiblity for the appaintmen / conginuity of mvery Threcsor on the Board is the regponsibility al tee manapersent of the Comgany.
Wy reaponsihibty 18 50 EXPReRs B Opinion on tess based o my verification, This Cerificate has beon iseed relying on the docenrenis znd
informniion as mentioned kergin above anid s vwene made svallabls o me o B camE L my knowveledpe for werification withoul 1Eing =y
cugmizasce of sy legal dispuie{s) ar sub-|udics maliers which mey bave effect ntherwise, i pedered s, by any coneerned authorigy{iesl. Thi=s
cetlicate 3 also neither in assurance s e fubss wissillry of the Comgany &7 of the efficiency or effclivencss wilil wihich Uise manageosent
ha conducted the affain of the Company.

For RAJAN SINGH £ 00

Place; Konisagar
Date: 30,/08,/2024
HﬂlﬂiFﬂlﬂS#lFﬂﬂlDﬂﬂ?Eﬁ.

mMembership Number-F10541
COP-1359%
Piar Rovigw: 251172022

R

_,_—'——'_'
= 122, Shasirinsgar. Konnagar, PO-Bara Bahera, Dist-Flooghly, FIN-T12246, West Bengal
g Rl - GOH31 263764, e-Mall ¢ csrajansinghll LiEgmail.oom
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NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED

CiN: L2EO300R197 7 PLCO0DT 35
30, 0 L. Hnlv Raad. Kelkea - TO0GTG, WE Pro 033 - 724 9381,

Affirmation of Compliance with Code of Conduct

Ta,

The Board of Directors
Milachal Eefaciories Limited
Bhubaneswar, 731014, Odisha

Dear 55rs),

i
1 do hereby certify that all the members of the Board of the Direciors of the mmp;“ﬂ;ﬁ:h:l:m:;_
management persannel (incl Key Managerial Personncl) have affismed their coma
code of conduct Taid down by the Board of the Dircotors

Further all Board KMembers and Core Managemens Farsornel of tha:Company =re IHjI“rul-::ll“; ':qu:{;::
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading under thir Secufities i ESE Bfﬂ ?Eﬁ and
(Prevantion of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and also in compkiance of Cade @ ;:“::155 and
Pracedures fne Falr Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, under the Sec
Exchange Board of India (Prevention of Inskder Trading) Regulations, 200 5, _

This certificate ks given in compliance with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing O ligatiens and

pischosure Reguirement) Regutation, 2015,
Dratech 30052024 -

¥V imal Prakash
Place: Kolkata Directior

-_-_______—-—___—'—"-—-H——__—r
Hzlﬁuﬂdﬂmt-!: PEIESTES,

MEDARRATH SPRATMENT, BAMAN RASAR LEWS ACADBHLBANESAAR Enordka DRISSA TSI002
Treal - D nTatsal In
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ANNEXURE - 1V
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Industry structure and developments:

Fortune of your Company which is in refractory industry is directly linked to the performance of Steel
Industry as it is the largest consumer of refractory products. The other consumers of refractory products
are Cement, Copper, Glass, Aluminum and Petro-chemical industries etc. which are witnessing reasonable
growth, all these factors will have a very positive impact on the growth of refractory industry in near future.
Nilachal Refractories Ltd. (NRL) is having its manufacturing unit in the State of Odisha near Dhenkanal. The
Plant is strategically located and the Company hopes to take advantage of the boom in Steel and
Aluminium industry in the region in times to come.

2. Opportunity, threats, risks and concerns:

Consequent upon technology advancement in steel making processes, major opportunity lies in
manufacturing of continuous casting refractories, special monolithic viz. Castables, Plastic based ramming
mass and gunning materials, etc. The Company is having its vision in line to this technology change.

Competition in refractory industry is building up. Lot of consolidation and re-organization is taking place
in refractory industry. Input costs mainly the increase in cost of raw materials is also a cause of concern
for refractory industry. Cost reduction measures will play an important role in keeping the unit viable in
the face of stiff competition.

Further the company is continuously pursuing for some large orders from the consumers in India and
overseas and also trying to rope in companies of repute to introduce new product categories for
manufacture of its Dhenkanal plant.

3. Outlook:

Production in steel industry has increased and the demand for refractory products is also increasing. NRL
will not be able to survive by basing its products mix on low-end products. For a sustained growth , NRL
will have to go for high value products for which your Company has started taking initiatives.

There are many small and large Steel and Aluminium Plants coming up around Dhenkanal and Odisha State
on the whole which will demand high-end products. With this we estimate a large requirement of quality
products with high value which should boost our total turnover as well as bottom line. In order toface this
challenge, your Company emphasis on Human Resource Management and Human Resource Development,
this will ensure a capable and motivated team in place post settlement of all these labour issues. The
Company is going to start afresh and shall have a new horizon.

4. Internal control system and their adequacy:

Significant internal audit systems are put in place.The firm of Chartered Accountant is conducting internal
audit to ensure that the system are adhered to and controls are not flouted.

~
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5. Discussion on financial performance

Your Company is making all round efforts for its revival and the prospects of such efforts should bear
frufts In the financial year 2023-24

6. Ratios where has been a significant change from F.Y, 2022-23 to 2023-24

There has not been any significant change In the key financial ratics from the financial year ended 319
harch, 2023 to 317 March, 2024.

7. Details of any change in return on net worth as compared to previous vear

There has not been change In return on et worth a5 compared to previous year,

Place: Kolkata For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Dated: 05 September 2024 NIRA} o
JALAN T
Niraj Jalan
[Director)
DIN : DOS51970
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Ta, 0% T4
I hir faand of Deecbon

Piabirhi Rirlr st ot Vs e

P-SBE/434, Kedarnath dpartment,

htahusbe Mager Leven Rosd,

KRoriha, Bhubansihwar

Comiaa- PS 1002

L. Draihbamdtes Frusty, 5o Harihar Prasty, o 5awam Lase, Didanayl, Muasaby, Cutlack- 753014, Chied
Tingncal Oficer of the Company da hereby ghve oenification sa pe Clauts 5[50 oF the Listing
agreemen] Thaf

{8} | have reviewed Arancial statements and the cank Bew stxiament for the year ended 11
March, 2024 and that 1o the bt of mry knowiedge and belied

sk ﬂmﬂmtummmmmmumwm
fact o contain vabements that might Be mitkesdeg,

[} T seabements ingrther presest & trus and fe vigw of the company's atfain and ace
i ppmphanie will estslng sceiing standeng, apphcabric e and regulation

8] Thers ate, fo the bast of my knowlkedgs snd baliel . no tranactions satensd info by the
oampany dening Ehe pead ended ¥1° March, 2024 which are fraudulest. llkegal and valatile o
the commpany™s oodle of consded],

(2] 1 aitept thee remasadiiy o establibing and malniaining imernal costroh lor Fineacial
Regoriing and | have evalused the effecireness of miernal control systems of the company
pariaireng to finsncal reoorbing.

fdy | evn indical ed 10 Ehe Acsitors and Audil Commiites;

1] Thart there wan mo tigreficast changes o intersal control ever Baancal reportng duning
£

] That thers wil o Tapndicast chamgas in Mcountng polcies durirg the yesr and 143l the
fbitve e e dagboiad in 1w notes o 1he finsecial vtaieeseniy; and

(@] Thers ween no instisers of sipadficant Fraud of which | Bave becose waesie of and (s
invalvermeet of the mansgement o an senploprs hiving § ugnilican rale in the
Company's intsenal comqngl sysiem over fmancial reparting.

A

Chief
Flacs - Kofhals
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TWINKLE AGARWAL

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

Form Mo, MRE-3
Secretarial Awdil Report
{For the Financial year ended 31% March, 2024)
[Porsuant by Section XM{1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies {Appointment
and Benmneration of Managerial Personnel) Hules, X04]

Ta,

The Members,

Mys Nilachal Refractories Limited

P-598/599, Kedarnath Apartment, Mahahir Magar Lewis Road,
Ehordha, Bhobaneswar, Orissa-751002

I have conducted ihe Secretarial Audit of the complisnce of applicable statotory provisions and the
adherence to good corporste practioes by Nilachal Refractories Limited (CIN: L269390R1977TLCONT35)
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in & manner that provided ws a
reasonable bases for evaluatmg the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial and obher
records and for devising proper syskems to ensune compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and
regulations,

Basid on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit pericd covering the financial year ended as on 31% March, 2024, complied
with the statulory provisions listed hersunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place o the exbent, in the manner and sabject to the reporting made hercinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minate books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Compary for the Financial year ended as on 312 March, 2024, to the extent applicable, according to
the provisions of:

a})  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
b)  The Securities Contracts (Repulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the Rules made thereundes,
€] The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

d}  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
Imdia Act, 1992 ('SEBL Act’) or by SFEBL, to the extent applicable fo the Company: -

#.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requinsments)
Regulations, 2015

B The Securthes and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Eegulationg, 2011;

ADDRESS: 4/E, PRAFULLA SARKAR STREET, 27 FLOOR, KOLKATA-70007 1
PHONE NUMBER: (21) 8981 1 26828/6220587627
EMAIL Ik CONTACT.CIOOMSULTINGBGMAIL.COM
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TWINKLE AGARWAL

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY

€. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Probhibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 and 2018; Not applicable during the financial year under review

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Fmploves Benefits) Ragulations, 2014
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Fmployee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 - Not applicable as the Company has not issued any shares to lts
Employees during the financial year under review;

£ The Securities and FExchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993- Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and
Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review;

B mmgsan;iEmha.ngeBm:d of India (bsue and Listing of Debt Securities) Repulations,
2004 - Not applicable as the Company has not issued any debt securities during the financial
year under review,;

h. The Securities 8 Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Bquity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and

- The Securities and Exchange Board of ndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulabons, 2021: Not
applicable a5 the Company has not delisted its equity shares during the financial year under
review;

L The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Mot
applicalble

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards wssued by The
Institute of Comparny Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rubes,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Apgreements et

I report that there was a change in Whole Time Key Manaperial Personnel Le., Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer wherein Mr. Sanjib Singh had given his resignation letter dated 31082023 which was
accephad at the Board Meeting held on 19102023 and in his place Mr. Ashish Komar Bhalotia was
appointed w.ef 2202 202,

I further repost that there was a change in Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel e, Chief Financial
Officer wherein Mr. Bikash Ranjan Nayak had given his rosignation letter dated 24012024 which was
duly accepted weef. 13.02 2024 and in his place Mr. Dukhabandhu Prosty was appointed on same date.

I further repaort thats

- The Board of Directors of the Company s duly constiubed with proper balance of Executive Direcior,
Mon-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The changes in the composition of the Board of
Lrrectors that took place during the period under review wene camed out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act

ADDRESS: 4/E. PRAFULLA SARKAR STREET, 24 FLODR, KOLKATA-70007 1
PHOMNE NUMBER: (91) 8281 1 26828/62905987627
EMAIL 1D CONTACT.CICONSULTINGEGMAIL.COM
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= Adequate notice & given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for soeking and
obtaining further fnformation and darifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting,

= As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman the decisions of the
Board were unanimaous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

- The Company has duly complied with the requirements of Structured Dgital Database nnder
Regulations 3(3) & 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading), Regulations, 2015 during the financial
year under review.

I further report that there ame adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
stz and operations of the Company to moniior and ensure compliance with applicable Taws, rules,
regulations and guidelines,

| further report that during the Aodit Period, the Company has not undertaken any spectfic events /
actions that can have a bearing on the Company’s compliance responsibility in pursuance of the above
referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc,

For Twinkle Agarwal
Company Secretary in Practise

T psinkle ‘iq‘lmnj.
Twinkle Agarwal

Membership Mo, 52363{A)
COF: 25606

UDIN:
Peer Re HCST Peer Review Noc 2540/2022

Diate: 03082024
Place: Kalkata

Note: Tlis Repiart i to be read with our letter of even dote wiich is snnexed as Annexe -A and farms an acdegral
part of tis report,

ADDRESS: 4/E. PRAFULLA SARKAR STREET, 2N FLOOR, KOLKAT A70007 1
PHONE NUMBER: (91) B981 126828 /62080507627
EMAIL ID: CONTACT . CACONSLULTINGEGMAIL . COM
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PRACTISING COMPARY SECRETARY

“s TWINKLE AGARWAL

Annexure “A'

Ter

The Membears,

My Nilachal Refractories Limited

P-598599, Kedamath Apartment, Mahabir Magar Lewis Road,
Ehordha, Bhubaneswar, Orissa-751002

My Report of even date is to be nead along with this letter.

1. Maintemance of secretarial rocords is the mesponsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on audit;

2 1 bave followed the andit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
pesurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was dose
on test basis to ensure thal correct fack are reflected I secretarial records. | beliove that the
processes and practices, Iiollowed provide a reassmabli: basis for my opinien;

3 Dhave not verified the correctness and approprizteness of financial records and books of account of
the: Company;

4 Wherever required, [ have obtained hManagement Representation about the compliance of Laws,
Rules and Regulations and happering of events efc,;

5. The vompliance of the provisions of corporabe and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Standards ete. is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited fo the verification
of procedurnes on test basis;

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Twinkle Agarual
Company Secretary in Practise
“Tuteakle Pﬂww’-
Twinkle Agarwal

Membership Mo, 32868(4)
CIOF: 156015

LI ADSZE68FOMET1E51
Peer Re TSI Peer Review No: 2540/022

Dates 03.08.2024
Place: Kolkata

ADDRESS: 4/E, PRAFULLA SARKAR STREET, 2" FLOOR, KOLKATA-TO007 1
PHOME NUMBER: (91) 2381 1 268828/629059 7627
EMAIL IDx CONTACT.CICONSULTINGEGMAIL COM
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JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 1, Cronked Lane, Kolkaa (WB) 70D D&%, India
Ph: +91-33-22484130 | Mob.: 98361 B413)

E: infofjainserang com | W www jRinssracgi oom
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Oaenlifiedd Opimion

We have aodited the financial sistements of NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED {“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statemnent of Profit ond Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the vear ended on that date, and notes 10 the financial stafements including a summary
of significant acoounting policies and other explonatory information ( hercinafter referred to os ™ the
financind siatements"™),

In our opinion and 1o the best of our informotion and eecording to the explanations given to us, except
for theeffecd of the matter deseribed in the “Basis for Qualified opinion™ paragraph of oor repo, the
aforesnid financial statements give a trus and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepied in India, of the state of affairs of the Company a5 at March 31, 2024, the Lass and
total comprebensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Cualified Opinlon

I, Tl Company continues not to assess impairment of carrying value of tangible assets of R
378.06 Lacs and Capital work in progress of Rs 314704 Lacs in accordance with
requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 36 on “Impairment of Assets™, Moreover, there
has besn no movement b the Caplial work in progress since 31.035.2014, We are unable 1o
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the recoverable amount of the Congpany's
tungible mssets and capital work in progress. Consequently, we are unable w0 determine
whether any adjusiments o carying value ans necessary and consequential impacts on the
financinl staterments.

2. Employee Retirement benefits are accounted for in the books on the basis 28 preseribed for in
the relevant Act, and not on the basis of actuarisl valustion ms required under lidian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 issued by the Institute of Chartered Aocountands of [ndia
and the liability is also not funded. However, in absence of necessary information being mude
avallable fo us the impact of the same o0 the loss for the wyear of the company amd
corresponding effect on Hability cannot be ascertained and quantifivd,

3. The compary had issoed two kind of redesmable preference shares &) | I%Redecmuble
Cumubative preference shares of Rs 1005 each [ully paid wp  andb) (8 Redeemable
Preference Shares of R, 1000-each fully paid wp !

gl 11% preference shares were dee for redemption on or before September 2000 bt the
samie has nol been redesmed and continues to be disclosed as such which is pob in
accordance with Indian Accounting Stendard (Ind AS) 32-Financlal [nstrument. As per
terng of isswe the company was required 10 account for in the year wider review a sum of
Re 1.65 Lacs as dividend payable to the preference shareholders since the sime has not
been redesmrad updo the wear wisder review. Mopsover, the compeny should have

Dranches : Ranchs (lorkand) & Cowahati LA ssam)

dwm Sarsopr & Co 4 Parmership Firm with BCAT Registration o, 308004E) convened imo Jemn Sancg & Co LLP
1 Limiied Loy Parinersbup wak LLPIN . ACE-1850 & ICA] Ristranicn Ne. MSIMESES000ET ) with etfert Irom May |7, 2023



JAIN SARAOGI & COLLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 1, Crooked Lane, Kolkata (WB) 700 069, India
Ph: +91-33-22484130 | Mob.: 98361 84131

E: info@jzainsaraogi.com | W' www jainsaraogi.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statemnent of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial stateinents including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ( hercinafter referred to as * the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for theeffect of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified opinion” paragraph of our report, the
aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Loss and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the wear ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

|. The Company continues not to assess impairment of carrying value of tangible assets of Rs
378.06 Lacs and Capital work in progress of Rs 3147.04 Lacs in accordance with
requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 36 on “Impaicment of Assets”. Moreover, there
has been no movement in the Capital work in progress since 31.03.2014. We are unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the recoverable amount of the Company’s
tangible assets and capital work in progress. Consequentiy, we are unable to determine
whether any adjustments to carrying value are necessary and consequential impacts on the
financial statements.

[}

Employee Retirement benefits are accounted for in the books on the basis as prescribed for in
the relevant Act, and not on the basis of actuarial valuation as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 issued by the Institute ¢i Chartered Accountants of India
and the liability is also not funded. However, in absence of nccessary information being made
available to us the impact of the same ca the loss for the year of the company and
corresponding effect on liability cannot be ascertained and quantified.

~
3.

The company had issued two kind of redeemable preference shares a) 11%Redeemable
Cumulative preference shares of Rs 100/- each fully paid up andb) 0% Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/-each fully paid up. '

a) 11% preference shares were due for redemption on or before September 2000 but the
same has not been redeemed and continues to be disclosed as such which is not in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32-Financial [nstrument. As per
terms of issue the company was reguired to account for in the year under review a sum of
Rs 1.65 Lacs as dividend payable to the preference shareholders since the same has not
been redeemed upto the year under review. Morcover, the company should have

Branches : Ranchi (Jharkhand) & Guwahati (Assam)|

Jain Sa}'aug! & Co. (a Parmership Firm with ICAI Registration No, 305004E) converted into Jain Saraogi & Co LLP
(a Limited Liabilirv Parinership with LLPIN  ACB-1959 & ICAI45istrauon No. 305004E/E300281) with etfect trom May 17. 2023
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accounted for the accumulated cumulative dividend on preference shares upto 31.03.2023
amounting to Rs 70.08Lacs which remains unaccounted. Had the same been accounted
for, the loss for the year would have been higher by Rs 1.65 Lacs and the reserve and
surplus would have been lower by Rs 71.73 Lacs.

b) In respect of 0% Redeemable Preference Share of Rs. 100/- each the company was
required redeem the same at 10% premium upto a passage of 36 months from the date of
issueand in addition pay a premium of Rs 10/ for every completed financial year after
passage of 36 months from the date of issue till the redemption of preference share.
Accordingly, the company was required to account for in the year under review a sum of
Rs 282.22 Lacs as premium to be paid on redemption of such preference shares since the
same has not been redeemed in the year under review. Moreover, the company should
have accounted for a cumulative premium payable on redemption of preference shares
upto 31.03.2023 amounting to Rs 2101.53Lacs which remains unaccounted. Had the
same been accounted for. the loss for the year would have been higher by Rs 282.22 lakh
and the reserve and surplus would have been lower by Rs 2383.75 lacs.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 31 (e) of the Financial Statement, regarding preparation of Financial
Statements on Going Concern basis for the reasons stated therein. The Company has incurred a net
loss of Rs.649.66 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 179.48 lakhs) during the year ended March 31, 2024 and
as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 1283.02 lakhs. As on
31% March 2024 the company’s total liabilities exceeds its total assets leading to a negative net worth
of Rs. 592.13 Lacs. The Company continues to incur losses and there is considerable decline in the
level of operations.

These events or conditions as set forth herein above, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the financial year ended on March31, 2024. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter
described in the basis for adverse opinion paragraph and Emphasis of Matter paragraph herein above,
we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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SL. 'AirKe'yﬂA-ilil-il_ Auditor’s Response
No. Matter o
1. Litigation The Company has certain ongoing legal proceedings with the revenue
matters authorities and /or cases arisen during the ordinary course of business of the
company.

The company's management does not expect these legal proceedings, when
concluded will have any material and adverse effect on the financial position
of the company.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures included and were not limited to the following;:

e Assessed the management’s position through discussions with the in-house
legal expert on both, the probability of success, and the magnitude of any
potential loss.

e Discussed with the management on the development in these litigations
during the year ended March 31, 2024.

s Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in the financial
statements in this regard.

2, Inventory The Company has certain slow/ non-moving items of inventory.The

Company’s management has valued such inventory at cost.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures included and were not limited to the following:

We have test checked that such items are being sold at a price higher than the
cost value.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis
and Director’s Report including Annexures to Director’s Report but does not include the financial
staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
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internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional Jjudgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of
such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A™ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, we have sought
and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion

paragraph above and matter as described in clause () (vi) below, in our opinion, proper books

of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

The Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act;

e. The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our cpinion may
have adverse effect on the functioning of the Company:

f. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2024 from being

appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Refer reservation stated in clause (j) (vi) below, relating to maintenance of accounts.

- With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B;

i. No managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 hasbeen paid/ provided by the
Company to its directors and accordingly reporting for the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act is not applicable;

J- With respeet to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

o

=0

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,2024 on its
financial position in its Financial Statements- Refer Note n0. 29(a) and 7.2 to the Financial
Statements.
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fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(vi) Based on our examination, the company, has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except in
respect of maintenance of inventory recordswherein the software did not have the audit
trail feature. Further, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software except in respect of inventory
transaction which is maintained in other software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
I, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

For JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 305004E/E300281
Place: Kolkata [.&)3 o
Date: 30th May, 2024. -
Manoj Keshan
(Partner)
Membership No. 055272
UDIN: 2405523 2BLRPR 5340 |
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of NILACHAL
REFRACTORIES LIMITED, on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31,
2024.

I (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant & Equipment.
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) As informed to us, Property, Plant & Equipment of the company have been physically verified
by the management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, Plant & Equipment is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the title deeds
of immovable properties are held in the name of the company except in the name of
erstwhile/former name of company having carrying Gross Carrying value of Rs. 5.77 lacs.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 20 16) and rules made thereunder.

II. (a)The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. [n our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregale for each class of inventory were not
noticed on such physical verification

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ § crore, in
aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, reporting under of
Clause3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Il The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clauses
3(iii) (a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3( iv) of the said order are
not applicable to the Company,

V. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public in accordance with directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and relevant provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(v)
of the Order does not arise.

VL. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government of India has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable to the company.




JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP CONTINUATION SHEET NO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

VIIL. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of
the books of account, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of excise, Value added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
amounts payable in respect of TDS amounting to Rs 7.21 Lakhs were in arrears as at March 31,
2024for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us,statutory dues which as referred to in
sub-clause (a) above have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as under:

| Name of the Nature of | Amount in ] Period to | Forum where Remarks
statute Dues Lacs which the | dispute is
amount pending
| relates
Sales Tax Sales Tax 72.18 1999-2000 to | Additional
2001-02 Commissioner
of
Sales Tax,

Central Zone,
Cuttack, Orrisa
B (Sales Tax)
Entry Tax Entry Tax 33.80 2001-2002 Additional
Commissioner
of
Commercial
Taxes, Range -
[’
Cuttack, Orissa
) (Entry Tax)
Entry Tax Entry Tax 0.79 2002-2003 Commissioner
of
Commercial
Tax,
Angul Range,
Angul, Orrisa
_ (Entry Tax)
Sales tax Sales Tax 24.10 2002-2003 Commissioner
of
Commercial
Tax,
| Angul Range,
Angul, Orrisa
| (Entry Tax)

VIIL According to information and explanations given to us, the company hasnot surrendered or disclosed
as any income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

IX. (a) Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayments of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the company.
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(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c )The Company has not obtained term loans during the financial yearand accordingly , the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the funds
raised on shortterm basis have been utilised for long term purposes by Rs. 1315.34 Lacs.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable;

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable

X.  (a)The company did not raise monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year under review.
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

XI. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

(b) There were no reports filed under Section 143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audits and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.

(c)According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any
complaint during the year under review.

XIL. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

XL According to the information and explanations provided by the management, transactions with related
parties are in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
Ind AS.

XIV. (a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;
(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

XVI (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
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(¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not
applicable.

XVIL. The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 63.67Lacsin the financial year under review and Rs.
125.13 Lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.

XVIII. There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

XX. There is no liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 the Act to the Company.
Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xx) () and {b) of the Order is not applicable.

XXI. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

Foar JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 305004E/E300281

g

Manoj Keshan

(Partner)

Membership No. 055272
UDIN: 2405523 2BKR PR & 2&0]

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th May, 2024.
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Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of NILACHAL
REFRACTORIES LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of NILACHAL
REFRACTORIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controls with reference to {inancial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that
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1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, apart from the matter describe in “Basis of qualified opinion” paragraph; the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 305004E/E300281

s

Manoj Keshan
(Partner)
Membership No. 055272

UDIN: 240552 728k BP§ 53601

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th May, 2024.
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Particulars

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property,Plant and Equipment
(b} Capital work-in-progress
{c) Financial Assets

- Other Financial Assets
(d) Deferred tax assets (net)
(e) Other non-current assets

(2) Current assets

{(a) Inventories

(b} Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(iv) Other Financial Assets

{c) Current tax assets (Net)

{d) Other current assets

BALANCE SHEET

Note

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
{(a) Equity Share capital
{b) Other Equity

Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-Preference share
() Other nen-current liabilities
(c) Praovisions
(d) Deferred tax Liabilities (net)

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
() Borrowings
(i) Trade payables

(a) Dues of small enterprises and microEhterprises
(b) Dues of creditors other than smat{ enterprises

and micro enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities

As At 21st March 2024
No.  Xip Lakhs T in Lakhs T in Lakhs

4 378.06
4 3147.04
5 25.43
[ -
7 10.60
8 43912
9 28.26
10 230
1 -
12 0.62 3118
0.72
13 21.74
4,05390
14 2,036.15
15 (2,628.28)
16 2,837.17
17 0.75
18 2134
6 10.98
19 147759
20 191.19
- 1,668.78
21 107.02
4,053.90

Total Equity and Liakilities

See accompanying note nes. 4 to 31 forming part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For JAIN SARAQG!I & CO LLP
Firm Regn.No. 305004E/E300281
hartered Accountants

I3
koo
Ma¥o] ‘Qs’han,

(Partner)

Mem. No.: 055272

UDIN% 240552 32 BKB PR G3 601
Place: Kolkata

Date: 30th May 2024

As At 31st March 2023

% m Lakhs

4347
3147.04

23.69
518.53
0.62

496.00

322.93
330
4.60
2.73 33356
4312

4,991.27

2,036.15
(1,578.62)

2,831.17
1.01
18.23

1,421.58

321.59
- 1,743.18
340.15

4,997.27

For and on behalf of the Bogrd of Dirgctors

N or
DIN : 00551970

Dukhatfandhu Prusty

CFO

o7

imal Prakash
Directer
DIN : 00174915

ﬂsL.‘sL Cﬁurmm_,—

Ashish Kumar Bhalotia
Company Secretary
M.No. A5B992

S '/ .';::'"1 - —t



NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L289390R1977PLCO00735

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended on

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (120.15) (190.36)
Adjusted for ;-
- Depreciation and amartisation expense 56.48 6523
- Interest income (1.84) (0.81)
- Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets (8.23) (2.50)
- Finance cost 38.53 -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (35.01) (128.44)
Adjusted for
- (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 294 67 (51.83)
- (Increase)/Decrease in inventories 56.88 72.16
- (Increase)/Decrease in other assets 11.39 (3.56)
- Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (130.40) 1841
- Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities & Provisions (230.29) 63.14
(32.75) (30.12)
Cash generated from operations
Net Income taxes (paid) / refunds (0.72) 0.02
Net cash from operating activities (33.48) (30.10)
B Casn flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and (©.11)
equipments including capital advances (0.04) )
Sale of property, plant and equipments 845 3.00
Change in other Financial Assests 037 -
Interest received 1.64 0.81
Net cash used in investing activities 10.41 370
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 56.00 13.00
Interest and finance charges paid (38.53) -
Issue of Preference Shares - -
Net cash used in financing activities 17.47 13.00
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (5.60) (13.40)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 7.90 21.30
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the vear 2.30 7.90
See accompanying note nos. 4 to 31 forming part of the financial statements =
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Bogrd of Difectors

f
/ '~ /

For JAIN SARAOGI & CO LLP

Firm Regn.No. 305004E/E300281 / = T

Chagtered Accountants an mal Prakash

ungl,cm Ohveclor Director

) DIN : 00551970 DIN : 00174915

Manoj K. Keshan
(Partner) |
Mem. No.: 055272 st ol ﬂgklg . f{ummuﬂl
UDIN: 24085272 BKBPOG 3 60) Ashish Kumar Bhalotia
Place: Kolkata Dukhabandhu Prusty Company Secretary

Date . 30th May 2024 CFO M No, A58592




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN . L269390R1877PLC0O00735
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Ncte 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Particulars No. 2 in Lakhs Zin Lakhs
I Ravenue From QOperations 22 129.25 105.84
Il Cther Income 23 185.66 3.36
t Total Income (I+11) 314.91 109.19
IV EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 27.56 36.30
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock- 25 47.51 16.96
in-Trade and work-in-progress
Employee banefits expense 26 20.51 19.83
Finance Cost 38.53 -
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 56.48 65.23
Other expenses 27 244.48 161.23
Total expenses (V) 435.06 299.55
V  Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax (ill- IV) (120.15) (190.36)
VI Exceptional Items -
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (120.15) (190.36)
VIl Tax expense:
Deferred tax 529.51 (10.88)
IX  Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII) (649.66) (179.48)
X Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations - -
XI Tax expense of discontinued operations -
XIt Profit/{loss) from Discontinued operations (after - -
XIlit Prefit/(loss) for the period (IX+XI1) (649.66) (179.48)
XV Other Comprehensive Income - -
A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B () ltems that will be reclassified to profit or - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss - -
XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (649.66) (179.48)
(XHI+XIV) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the period)
XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation)
() Basis (3.19) (0.88)
(i} Diluted (3.19) (0.88)

See accompanyng note nos. 4 tc 31 forming part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date

For JAIN SARAOGI & COLLP
Firm Regn.No. 305004E/E300281
ered Accountants

Manoj K.

(Partner)

Mem. No.. 055272

uDs 24p 95732 BB PR (9360]
Place: Kolkata

Date = 30th May 2024

For and on behalf of the B

Jalan
rector
DIN : 00551970

DuKhabandhu Prusty
CFO

d of Diréctors

g

Vimal Prakash
Director
DIN : 00174915

ﬂs l\isL Fman

Ashish Kumar Bhalotia
Company Secretary
M.No. A58992



A. Equity Share Capital

NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1977PLCO000735
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

¥ in Lakhs

pericd

Balance at the beginning of the reporting

Changes in equity share capital during the

year

Balance at the end of the
reperting pericd

2,036.15

2,036.15

B. Other Equity

¥ in Lakhs

Reserves and Surplus

Capital
Reserve /
Central
Subsidy

Share
Forfeiture
Money (38550
Equity Shares)

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Uy
Instruments
through
Other
Comprehensive

Total

Balance as at 01.04.2022

15.00

1,350.00 1.20

(3,165.34)

- {1,799

14)

Changes in accounting
policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the reporting
period

Transfer From retained
earnings

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

Net prcfit after tax for the
year

(179.48)

(179.

48)

Dividends

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to General
Reserve

Others

‘Balance as at 31.03.2023

15.00

1,350.00 1.20

(3,344.82)

. (1,878

62)

Reserves and Surpius

Capital
Reserve /
Central
Subsidy

Share
Forfeiture
Money (38550
Equity Shares)

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Equity
Instruments
through Other
Comprehensive
Inccme

Total

Balance as at 01.04,2023

15.00

1,350.00 1.20

(3,344.82)

- (1,978.

62)

Changes in accounting
policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the reporting
period

Transfer From retained
earnings

Total Comprehensive
Income for the year

Net profit after tax for the
year

(649.66)

(649,

66)

Dividends

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to General
Reserve

Others

Balance as at 31.03.2024

15.00

1,350.00 1.20

{3,994.48)

- (2,628.28)




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1977PLC000735

Note No. 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1.

Company Overview
NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED (the ‘Company’) is an Indian Company and its registered office is situated
at P-598/598 Lewis Road, Kedarnath Apariment, Mahabir Nagar Bhubaneswar 751002 Odisha. The Company has
been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares are listed on the Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE) and Calcutta Stock Exchange Association (CSE) in India =~ The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of Refractories items.

2 Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been censistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

3 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except
for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

* defined benefil plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and
" certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

(iif) Classification of assets and liabilities
The classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current, wherever applicable, are based on normal
operating cycle of business activities of the Company, which is twelve months

(iv) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosures of contingent liabilities on
the date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Underlying eslimates are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and
future periods. Significant judgement and estimates to the carrying ameounts of assels and liabilities within the next
financial year, is in respect of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, valuation of
deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, estimation for employee defined benefits obligations etc.

Significant judgement and estimates to the carrying amounts of assets and Ilabllities within the next financial year,
is in respect of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, valuation of deferred tax assets,
provisions and conlingent liabilities, estimation for employee defined benefits obligations etc.

(v) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are
effective April 01 2023,

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The
other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting
pericds and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the company’s accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory
treatment.

(vi) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised preducts or services to customers either over time
or at a point of time at an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects lo be entitied to
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Note No. 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

in exchange for those producls or services. Control is defined as the ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from an asset.

Revenue is
measured based on the transaction price, which is the expected consideration lo be received, to the extent that it
is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in future periods. At the inception of the
contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the contract and assesses which of the
promised goods or services shall be identified as separate performance obligations. Promised goods or services
give rise to separate performance obligations if they are capable of being distinct. Revenue from the delivery of
products is recognised at the peint in time when control over the products is passed to the customers, which
is determined based on the individual terms of delivery agreed in the customer contract. The Company does not
expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goodsor services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

{vii) Valuation of Inventories :-

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of raw malerials and stores, and traded goods comprises cost of purchases, other directly
attributable expenditure, non-refundable taxes and duties; net of any rebates or discounts . Cost of work-in-
pregress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allccated on the basis of normal operating capacity Cost of
inventories also include ali other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and cendition
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average cost basis. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

(viii) Capital Work in Progress

Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost less
impairment (if any), under Capital work-in-progress. The cost includes the purchase cost of materials, including
import duties and nonrefundable taxes, interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of the asset and
any directly attributable costs of bringing an assets ready for their intended use.

(ix) Property Plant & equipments :-

Fixed assets are valued at original cost of acquisition including taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses
relating to acquisition and installation. Net Changes on fareign exchanges contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the fixed assests are capitalized.

Transition to Ind AS :- On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value
using straight line method over the useful lives of assets and in the manner specified in schedule |l of the
Companies Act, 2013. Pro-rata depreciation is charged on property, plant and equipment from/ up to the date on
which such assets are ready to put to use/ are deleted or discarded.

(x) Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulaled impairment
losses, if any

(xi) Foreign Currency :-

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the prevailing rate on the transaction date. The year end
balances in foreign currency are re-stated at the closing rate and the resultant difference is carried to Profit & Loss
Account.

(xii) Borrowing Cost :-




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1577PLCO00735

Note No. 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Borrowing costs that are attribulable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one thal necessarily takes substantial period of time 1o get ready for
inlended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue

(xiii Lease :-
Certain part of the Faclory Land was acquired in 1980 for a term of 90 years lease and the yearly lease rent
charged to statement of profit & loss account.

{xiv) Research and Development Expenditure :-

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged out in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure,
which results in creation of assets, is included in fixed assets and depreciation is provided on such assets are
applicable

(xv) Intangible Assets :-
Expenditure incurred is treated in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standard-26 *Intangible Assets”
issued by the ICAI.

(xvi) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :-

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in
the financial statements.

{xvii) Retirement Benefits :-
{a) Contributicn towards Provident Fund is being charged to revenue on accrual basis and is deposited to regional
office of the concernad authority

{b) Provision for graltuity has been made on the method as prescribed in the respective act.

(c) Provision has been made for accrued leave salary due to the employees, computed with reference to un-
availed leave of the employee at the year end.

(xviii) Income Tax & Deferred Tax :-

Income Tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income fer the year as per prevailing
tax laws.

Deferred Tax :-

Provision for Tax is made for current and deferred taxes. Current taxes is provided on the taxable income using
applicable tax rates and tax laws Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities arising on account of timing differential and
which are capable of reversal in subsequent periods are recognized using the Tax rates and Tax Laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted till the date of the Balance Sheet. Deferred Tax Assets are not recognized
unless there is “Virtual Certainty” that Sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such Deferred
Tax Assets will be realized.

(xix) Impairment of Assets :-

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors, i.e. when the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount,
an impairment loss is charged to the profit & loss account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired

(xx) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the perlod/year attributable to equity
sharenclders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year is acjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus
element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) if
any.




NILACHAL REFRACTORIEE LIMITED
CIN : L269330R1877PLC000735

Note No. 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

{xxi) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks/ financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts

{xxii) Income recognition

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses

(xxiii) Financial Liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company.The Company's financial liabilities primarily includes trade and other
payables.These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within credit period of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(b) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss) are added or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Financial liabilities are classified as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(c ) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

(d) De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance cost.
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Property, Plant and Equipments Note — 4
in Lakhs
1 | GROSS BLOCK | DEPRECIATION | T BL
As at Additions Sales/ As at As at Adjusted  Provided Deduction As at Net Value Net Value
Description of Assets 1st April during  Adjustment 31st March 31st March With during Sales  31stMarch of Assets of Assets
2023 the year during 2024 2023 Refained  the year Adjustment 2024 as at as at
the year Eamings 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
TANGIBLE ASSETS
LAND (Freehold) 18 47 18.47 - - - - 18.47 18.47
LAND (Leasehold) * 128 - 1.28 - 0.57 - 057 a7 1.28
BUILDINGS 206.20 - - 206.20 118.77 - 3N - 12288 83.31 86.42
PLANT & MACHINERIES 1,534 61 0.04 440 153025 1,211.02 5278 418 1,259.83 27062 323.59
FURNITURE & FITTINGS 61.17 - - 61.17 58.11 001 58.11 3.08 3.08
VEHICLES 37.78 - - 37.78 35.89 - E 35.89 1.89 1.89
TOTAL 1,859.50 0.04 4.40 1,855.15 142479 56.48 4.18 1,477.09 378.08 43471
Capital Work in Progress 3,147.04 - - 314704 - - - - 314704 3147.04
Grand Total 5,006.54 0.04 440 500218 1,4247% 56 48 418 147709 352509 3581.75
- Note .- The Leasehold land was acquired in 1980 lor a term of 90 ysars
2 in Lakh:
2 | GROSS BLOCK | DEPRECIATION | NET BLOCK
As at Additions Sales/ As at As at Adjusted  Provided Deduction As at Net Value Net Value
Description of Assets 1st April during  Adjustment 31stMarch 31st March With during Sales  31stMarch of Assels of Assets
2022 the year during 2023 2022 Retained  the year Adjustment 2023 as at as at
the year Eamings 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
TANGIBLE ASSETS
LAND (Freehold) 18.47 - - 18.47 - - - - - 18.47 18.47
LAND (Leasehold) * 1.28 - - 1.28 - - - 1.28 1.28
BUILDINGS 206.20 - - 206.20 116.66 - an - 11977 86.42 89.53
PLANT & MACHINERIES 1,534.50 011 - 1.534.61  1,149.75 - 61.27 - 121102 323.59 384.74
FURNITURE & FITTINGS 61.17 - 61.17 57.51 - 0.59 - 58 11 306 366
VEHICLES 47.80 - 1002 37.78 4515 0.26 9.52 35.88 1.89 265
TOTAL 1,669.41 0.11 10 02 1,8569.50 1.369.08 65.23 9.52 142479 43471 50033
Capital Work in Progress 3,147.04 - 3,147.04 - - - 3,147.04 3147.04
Grand Total 5.016.45 011 10.02  5,006.54  1,369.08 - 65.23 952 142479 358175 3647.37
* - Note - The Leasehold land was acquired in 1980 for a term of 99 years
3. Capital work-in-prcgress ageing
Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 - Ageing for capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2023 -
T in Lakhs 2 in Lakhs
Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of Amount in capital work-in-progress for a pericd of
Capital work-in-progress | Less thant More than3 Total Less thant More than3 Total
year 1-2years | 2- 3years_ years year 1-2years | 2 - 3years years
Projects in progress - - 314704 | 314704 - - - 314704 3147.04
Total - - - 314704 | 3147.04 - - - 3,147.04 | 3,147.04
To be completed in To be completed in
Capital work-in-progress | Less thant More than3 Total Less thant More than3 Tolal
year 1-2years | 2 - 3years years vear 1-2years | 2 - Jyears years
Projects in progress - - - 314704 | 3,147.04 - - - 3,14704 | 314704
Total - - - 3,147.04| 3,147.04 - - - 3,147.04 3,147 04

Notes : No Revised cost for Completion of CWIP has been determined at present, the same be determined at ihe time of implementation of the project.




NILACHAL REFRACTQRIES LIMITED
CIN . L269390R1977PLCO0GT735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

As At 31,03.2024 As At 31,03.2023
%in Lakhs Xin Lakhs
Notes No. 5
Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits 18.48 22.34
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 6.95 -
others(to be specified);]
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - 135
25.43 23.69
Notes No. &

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the fellowing :-

Deferred tax Asset

Tax impact on difference between book value of 41.32 578.27
depreciable assets and written down value for tax

purposes

Deterred tax Liability 52.30 59.74

Tax impact of expenses charged to statement of
profit & loss but allowance under tax laws deferred

Net Deferred Tax Assets (10.98) 518.53
Notes No, 7
Other Non-Current Assets
Compensation on Land Acquired (refer note no 7.0) 0.62 0.62
Advance for Land compensesion (refer note no 1.2) 9.98 -
10.60 0.62

Note No 7.1:- Government of Orissa had acquired 8.73 acres of unutilized portion of land of the Company for
which the cost of the land has been proportionately reduced and receivablie from Govt. Since the
Government had not intimated the acquisition compensation of the land, deficit will be recognized in revenue
on receipt of such intimation from the Government. It was found oul that the relevant department of the
Government of Orissa has still not recorded the acquisition in their record.

Note No. 7.2 .- The company had received a communication from the office of the Collector & District
Magistrate, Dhenkanal (Land Acquisilion General) No. VIII-12/2024/1855 Dt: 09.02.2024 against the letter no
317/dt.23.08.2022 & L. No 337/dt.03.09.2022 of Tahasildar, Dhenkanal asking the company to pay decretal dues
amounting to Rs 19,96,565/- in the Execution case No. 32/1998 filed by Raghab Chandra Sahu & Others Vrs
L.A.0., Dhenkanal & others. The said suit was instituted by the claimant for enhanced compensation in the
year 1998 and pertains tc period before the company was acquired by the present owners from Canara Bank,
operaling agency under BIFR. Against the said demand an amount of ¥ 9,98,283/- being the 50% of the
demand amount has been paid and has been accounted for as an advance. As the matter is sub-judice,
adjustment if any, will be dene anly on the final settlement.

Notes No. - 8

Inventories

(As taken, valued and certified by the management)

Stock of Stores and Spare Parts (At Cost) 27.57 28.04
Stock of Packing Malerial (At Cost) 20.43 20.05
Stock of By Products (At Net Relisable Value) 1.41 1.41
Slock of Raw Material (At Cost) 63.89 7317
Stock of Finished Goeds (At Lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value) 255.06 299.70
Stock of Work in Progress (At Cost)

Refractories Brick 70.77 73.63

439.12 496.00
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
AsALFLOGZ0Z4  As A1 31.03.2023

Notes No. - 9
Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered good)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 12.74 332,96
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (84.48) 28.26 (10.03) 322.93
28.26 32293
Ageing for trade receivables — current outstanding as at March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less 6 More
than  months -2 Z-3 than Total
6 months - 1year years years 3 years
Ullﬂliﬂulgd trade receivables -
Considered good 6.58 1.04 0.21 - 20.43 28.26
Considered doubtful -
u r iv
Considered good -
Considered doubtful - - - - 84,48 B4,48
6.58 1.04 0.21 - 104.92 1n2.74
Less. Provision for doubtful receivables 84.48 84.48
6.58 1.04 0.21 - 20.43 28.26
Ageing for trade receivables - current outslanding as at March 31, 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less 6 More
than  months |72 2-3 than Total
6 months - 1year years years 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables -
Considered good 25.57 43.57 156.94 - 96.85 322.93
Considered doubtful - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables
Considered good - - - - - -
Considered doubtful - - - - 10.03 10.03
25.57 43.57 156.94 - 106.88 332.96
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables 10.03 10.03
25.57 43.57 156.94 - 96.85 322.93
Notes No. - 10
Cash and Cash Egquivalents
Cash in hand 0.50 0.02
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 1.80 3.28
2.30 3.30
Notes No. - 11
Others bank Balances
- in deposit account - 4.60

- 4.60




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1977FLC000735
NOTES TO ACCQUNTS
fis A1 31032024 As AL 31032023
%in Lakhs X in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs

Notes No. - 12
Advances Recoverale in Cash or in Kind
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances Recoverale in Cash or in Kind -
Accrued interest on terms deposits 0.62
Loans and advances to employees 0.7
Less : Provision for doubtful advances - - - 0.17

2.57

0.62 273
Notes No, - 13
Other current assets
Balance with statutory / government authorities
(i} Sales Tax Recoverable 1713 16.51
(i) Cenvat credit receivable - 22.18
(iii) VAT tax credit receivable - 1.97
(iv) Income Tax Refundable 146 146
(v) Advance Payment of Income Tax 1.00 19.59 1.00 4312

Advances Recoverale in Cash or in Kind 1.82 -
Loans and advances to employees 0.34 2.16 - -
21.74 43.12

Notes :-
Sales Tax Recoverable include amount of Rs 6.53 lacs (Previous year Rs 6.53 Lacs) ) collected by Sales
Tax authorilies against demand not acknowledged by the Company.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Notes No. 14
SHARE CAPITAL As Al 31-03-2024 As At 31-03-2023
Nos. Zin Lakhs Nos. Tin Lakhs
(a) Capital Structure
Autherised
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 20400000 2,040.00 20400000 2,040.00
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 20400000 2,040.00 70400000 2,040.00
Subscribed & Pai
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 20361450 2,036.15 20361450 2,036.15
(b) Share Capital Reconciliation
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period 20361450 203615 20361450 2,036.15
Issued during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 20361450 2,036.15 20361450 2,036,135
(c) The rights, preference and restrictions including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and

(e)

the repayment of capital :-

The Company have two class of shares i.e. Equity & Preference carrying a nominal value of Rs 10 each and
Rs 100 each respectively. Each helder of equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share, The Company
shall declare and pay dividend in Indian Rupees, When the company have distributable profit, the
company shall propose dividend, subject to the approval of shareholders in annual general meeting. In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all prefential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. Also the preference shares shall be redeemed
only when the company have distributable profits which would ctherwise be available for dividend or out
of proceeds of fresh issue of shares made for the purpose of redemption, hence for the year under review
the shares shall not be redeemed

Forfeited Shares
38550 Equity Shares 1.20 1.20
Details of shares held by shareholders holding mere than 5% of the aggregate Eguity shares in the
Company
Shareholder's Name As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023

Nos. % of Holding Nos. % of Holding
Ambrarella Cap Fin Private Limited 22,50,000 1.05%  22,50,000 11.05%
Season Trading & Investment Pvt.Ltd 15,00,000 1.37% 15,00,000 1.31%
Sushil Kumar Agarwal 23,58,000 11.58% 12,18,000 5.98%
Vijay Kumar Agarwal 12,15,030 5.97% 12,15,030 5.97%
Minicraft Enterprise Pvt Ltd 28,11,986 13.81% 28,11,986 13.81%

Eynthia Tie-up Pvt. Ltd - - 14,00,000 8.35%




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN: L2693%0R1977PLC0OO0T35

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Nates No, 15 contd..
(d) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters :
Details of Shares held by Promoters As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
- Number of % of Total ;ug::’li‘: Number of % of Total ;ng:g"tii
Shares Shares Shares  Shares

year year
Ganpati Industrial Pvt Ltd 500000 2.46% - 500000 2.46% -
Alck Prakash 62500 0.31% - 62500 0.31% -
Bhagwati Prasad Jalan And Sons Huf . 75000 0.37% - 75000 0.37% -
Kamal Prakash 362500 1.78% - 362500 1.78% -
Braj Jalan And Others Huf . 50000 0.25% - 50000 0.25% -
Bela Jalan 150000 0.74% - 150000 0.74% -
Pankaj Jalan And Others Huf . 75000 0.37% - 75000 0.37% -
Anubhuti Prakash 319250 1.57% - 319250 157% -
Bhagwati Prasad Jalan 550584 2.70% - 550584 2.70% -
Aditi Jalan 240000 118% - 240000 1.18% -
Fidhi Jalan 165000 0.81% 165000 0.81% -
Pankaj Jalan 367000 1.80% - 367000 1.80% -
Piyush Jalan 665000 3.27% - 665000 3.27% -
Raj Rani Agarwal 681823 3.35% - 681823  3.35% -
Bela Jalan 165000 0.81% - 165000 0.81% -
Niraj Jalan 640000 314% - 640000 316% -
Parwati Devi Jalan 140000 0.69% - 140000 0.69% -
Anupama Prakash 19250 0.09% - 19250 0.09% -
Madhu Agarwal 319250 1.57% - 319250 1.57% -
Ishika Jalan 44000 0.22% - 44000 0.22% -
Aarav Jalan 44000 0.22% - 44000 0.22% -
D P Jalan & Other Huf . 75000 0.37% - 75000 0.37% -
Vimal Prakash 362500 1.78% - 362500 1.78% -
Pushpak Dealcom Private Limited 300000 1.47% - 300000 1.47% -
Seasons Trading And Investments Private Ltd 1500000 1.37% - 1500000 7.37% -
Likewise Investment And Marketing Pvt Ltd 275000 1.35% - 275000 1.35% -
Jekay International Track Pvt. Ltd. 500000 2.46% - 500000 2.46% -
Ambarella Cap Fin Private Limited 2250000 11.05% - 2250000  1N.05% -
Minicraft Enterprise Pvt Ltd 2811986 13.81% - 281986  13.81% -
P P Suppliers And Agencies Private Limited 667879 3.28% - 667879 3.28% -
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Note No. 15 - Other Equity

NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN . L269380R1977PLCO00735

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Zin Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Tty
Instrument
Share 5 Money
Capital . Forfeiture received
Reserve / Secur!tues Money Retained through against Total
Premium ) Other
Central (38550 Earnings share
. Reserve Comprehe
Subsidy Equity ; warrants
nsive
Shares) Inmeras
Balance as at 01.04.2022 15.00 1,350.00 1.20| (3,165.34) - - (1,799.14)
Changes in accounting
policy or prior period errors .
Restated balance at the
beginning of the reporting -
period
Transfer From retained . .
earnings
Total Comprenhensive
Income for the year
Net profit after tax for the
year (179.48) (175.48)
Dividends -
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Transfer to General Reserve i
Others -
Balance as at 31.03.2023 15.00 1,350.00 1.20 (3,344 .82) - - (1,978.62)
Reserves and Surplus | Et“‘“"’ ;
Share s rL;men Money
Capital Securities Forfeiture throuah received
Reserve / . Money Retained 9 against Total
Premium : Other
Central (38550 Earnings share
; Reserve . Comprehe
Subsidy Equity A warrants
nsive
Shares) [l N
Balance as at 01.04.2023 15.00 1,350.00 1.20 | (3,344.82) - (1,978.62)
Changes in accounting .
policy or prior period errors -
Restated balance at the
beginning of the reporting -
period
Transfer From retained i }
earnings
Total Comprehensive i
Income for the year
Net profit after tax for the
year (649.66) (649.68)
Dividends - -
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Transfer to General Reserve )
Others -
Balance as at 31.03.2024 15.00 1,350.00 120 (3,994.48) - - (2,628.28)




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
As At 31.03.2024 As At 31.03.2023
Nos. T in Lakhs Nos. T in Lakhs

Notes| 16

Ors Fin. Liabilities (Preference Shares)

Redeemable Cumulatve Preference Shares
11% Redeemable Cumulatve Preference Shares

Rs. 100/- each fully paid up 14,980 1498 14,980 1498

0% Redeemahle Preference Shares of Rs, 100/-

each fully paid up 28,22,191 282219 28,2291 2,822.19
2,837.17 2,837.17

The rights, preference and restrictions including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and
the repayment of capital :-

The Company have two class of shares i.e, Equity & Preference carrying a nominal value of Rs 10 each and Rs
100 each respectively. Each holder of equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company shall
declare and pay dividend in Indian Rupees. When the company have distributable profit, the company shall
propose dividend, subject to the approval of shareholders in annual general meeting. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all prefential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders. Also the preference shares shall be redeemed only when the
company have distributable profits which would otherwise be available for dividend or out of proceeds of
fresh issue of shares made for the purpose of redemption, hence for the year under review the shares shall
not be redeemed

11% Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares were redeemable before September 1995 by giving six months
notice by such redemption to the holders thereof. However, as per the terms of the Sancticned Rehabilitation
Scheme, the preference Shares are to be continued with roll over option for another 5 years and no interest is
payable during such rehabilitation period. Accordingly, no provision for any interest has been made during the
year. Due to non-availahility of profit, no provision has been made for payment of dividend to the Preference
Shareholders; cumulative from the date of allotment i.e 20th September 1980 upto the due date of redemption
amounting to Rs 41.60 Lacs or the dividend payable thereafter. Further 0% Redeemable Preference Shares
shall be subject to redemption when the Company has distributable profit. Hence, for the year under review
the Shares shall not be redeemned

Issue of Shares :- 9,00,000 0% Redemmable Preference Share of Rs. 100/- at par has been issued and allotted
by the Company by conversion of unsecured Loans during the financial year ended on 31st March 2017.The
Preference Shares shall from the date of allotment rank pari-passu in all respects with all other preference
shares of similar category in the Company then on issue.The Preference shares shall be redeemed before the
expiry of 20 years when the company has distributable profits and upon mutual consent of the allottees and
company with an option to redeem at the sole discretion of the company at any time after the expiry of thirty
six month from the date of the allotment, at par or at a premium out of the distributable profits of the
company.




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

As At 31.03.2024 As At 31.03.2023
% in Lakhs %in Lakhs Tin Lakhs Fin Lakhs

Notes No. 17

Other non-current liabilities

Trade / Securily Deposits 0.75 1.01
Notes No. 18

Provisicns

Provision on Leave encashment & Gratuity Payable 21.34 21.34 18.23 18.23
Notes No. - 19

Short Term Borrowings

Unsecured Loans

l.oan Repayable on Demand 1,477.59 1,421.58

Notes :-

Unsecured Loans are repayable on Demand

Notes No. - 20
Trade payables
Trade payables .-
Other than acceptances Micro, Small and
Medium Enlerprises others 19119 321.59

Ageing for trade payable - current outstanding as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
Total
- 1year years years 3 years
Irade payahles
MSME* - - - - -
Others 45.80 20.16 40.82 75.21 181.99
Disputed dues - MSME* - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - 9.20 9.20
45,80 20.16 40.82 84.41 191.19
*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2005,
Ageing for trade payable - current outstanding as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
Total
- Tyear years years 3 years
Trade payables
MSME* - - - - -
Others 55.15 42.59 23.28 191.38 312.39
Disputed dues - MSME™ - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - 9.20 5.20
55.15 42.59 23.28 200.58 321.59

*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2004,

Notes No. - 21
Other current Liabilities
Statutory remittances 16.48 11.07
Advance Income 1.28
Advance against Sales 18.00 18.00

Advance from customers 71.26 107.02 311.08 34015




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269350R1977PLC000735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Notes | 22

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Refractory Bricks
Castables & Manolithic
Others
Raw Materials

Other Operating Revenue
Sales of Scrap

Notes 23

Other Income
Interest Income
Interest
Interest on IT Refunds
Other Nen Operative Income
Liabilities No Required Written Back
Foreign Exchange Fluctuatiion
Misc. Income - Others

Profit on Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment

Rent Received
Discount Received

Notes 24

Cost of Material Consumed
Qpening Stock
Purchases

Less: Cost of Material Sold
Clesing Steck
Cost of Material Consumed

Notes 25

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
lnventories at the end of the year ;-
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

By-Products
Inventeries at the Beqginning of the year :-
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

By-Products

Notes 26

Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries Wages and other allowances
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Gratuity Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs T in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
123.46 83.01
- 123.46 - 83.01
4.65 22.83
128.10 105.84
115 -
129.25 __ 10584
1.64 0.81
- 1.64 0.00 0.81
155.35 0.05
11.29 -
314 -
8.23 2.50
6.00 -
0.02 184.03 - 2.54
185.66 3.36
7317 128.46
21.84 14.29
95.01 142.75
3.56 9145 33.28 109.47
63.89 73.17
27.56 36.30
255.06 29%.70
70.77 73.63
1.41 327.23 1.4] 37474
299.70 321.89
73.63 68.40
1.41 374.74 1.41 391.70
47.51 16.96
7.5 18.73
0.74 0.57
025 053
2.21 -
20,51 19.83



NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1977PLCO00735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes

Other Expenses

Notes

31.03.2024 31.03.2023
% in Lakhs % in Lakhs T in Lakhs T in Lakhs
27
Cost of Material Sold 3.56 33.28
Consumptions of Packing Materials 5.51 2.64
Consumptions of Stores & Spares 0.47 0.32
Electricity and Power 18.93 18.71
Manufacturing Expenses 699 5.05
Repairs & Maintenance :
To Plant & Machinery 0.78 2.80
To Building - 0.66
To Others 7.62 8.40 10.43 13.89
Carriage outward 13.89 5.16
Advertisement & Publicity - 0.08
Rent 10.52 22.39
Bank Charges 0.38 0.02
Rates & Taxes 0.33 0.03
Telephone Charges D.34 0.15
Insurance charges 0.65 1.09
Computer Expenses 0.03 0.08
Printing & Stationery 017 0.12
Filing Fees 0.25 017
Postage & Courier Charges 0.05 0.04
Professional & Consultancy Charges 10.99 16.83
Conveyance, Tour & Travels 2.75 4.07
Prior Period Expenses/ Adjustments - 0.13
Provision for bad and doubtful debt 44.61 -
Payment to auditors - Audit Fees* 275 0.60
General Expences 0.58 0.12
Listing Fees 4,64 3.00
Subscription Fees & Expenses 0.84 1.91
Watch & Ward 31.02 29.02
Office Maintenance 0.69 1.28
Sundry Balances Written off and Baddebt 73N -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.43 1.06
244.48 161.23
Notes :-
Payment to Auditors Comprise (net of service Tax, input Credit where applicable)
As Auditors - StatutoryAudit 2.00 0.60
As Auditors - Limited Review 0.50 -
For Tax Audit 0.25 -
2.75 0.60
28
Depreciation & Amortisation
Depreciation 55.91 65.23
Amortisation 0.57 56.48 - 65.23
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Notes Na. - 29

{a) Conlingent Liabilties
Sales Tax
Water Charges
Water Charges (refer note)
Suit Pending against the Company
Orissa Entry Tax

As At 31.03.2024
% in Lakhs

96.28
714
90.22
9.94
417

As At 31.03.2023
Xin Lakhs

96.28
714
9.94
417

Note : The Company has filed a Writ Petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Crissaon 14.07.2023 against the demand raised by the
office of Executive Engineer, Rengali Right Canal Division No-ll, Dhenkanal as water consumption charges and the amount

outstanding as on 31.03 2024 was Rs.568.62 lacs.

As the matter is subjudice, the adjustment if any would be done on resclution of the same. Further, the Management believes that
the demand as raised by the department will not withstand the (egal scrutiny and the matter will be decided in Company's favour.

(b) Commitments
Estimated amount cf contract remaining to be executed
on Capital account and not provided for Tangible assets

{c) Details of unhedged foreign currency Exposures

Payable in foreign exchange
Receivable in fereign exchange

{d) Earnings in foreign currency :
Export of finished goods calculated on FOB basis

(e) Value of imperts calculated on CIF basis :
Raw matarials

() Expenditure in foreign currency :
Royalty
Professional and consultation fees
Interest
Other matters

(g) Details of consumptien of imported and indigenous items

Imported

Raw materials
Components
Spare parts

Indigenous
Raw malerials
Components
Spare parts

(h) Earnings per share :
(a) Continuing operations
Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operaticns
attributable to the equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares
Par value per share (in Rs.)

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic {in Rs.)
Earnings per share from continuing operations - Diluted (in Rs.)

(b} Total aperations
Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations
attributable to the equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares
Par value per share {in Rs)

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic (in Rs.)
Earnings per share from centinuing operations - Diluted (in Rs.)

Receivable/ Receivable/
(Payable) (Payable)

in Lakhs $

123892
Receivable/ Receivable/
(Payable) (Payable)
% in Lakhs $

(121.99) (1,84,032)

(I21—99) (1,84,032)

For the year For the year
ended on ended on
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
% T in Lakhs % % in Lakhs
0.00% - 0.00% -
0.00% - 0.00% -
0.00% - 0.00% -
100.00% 2756 100.00% 36.30
2756 36.30

For the year
ended on
31.03.2024

(549.66)
2,03,61,450
0

(3.19)

{(3.19)

(649.56)
2,03,61,450
10

(3.19)

(319)

</
(':Q Mt an / /4
\\«.f‘n'.' ACLON~

For the year
ended cn
31.03.2023

(179.48)
2,03,81,450
0

(0.88)
(0.88)

(179.48)
2,03,61,450
10

(0.88)
(0,88)



Notes No. - 30

Details of related parties

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

Utimate Holding Company
Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Associates

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Relatives of KMP

Company/Entities in which KMP / Relativ
of KMP can exercise significant influence

NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN: L269330R1977PLCO00735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

MNames of related parties

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Mr Vijay Kumar Agarwal Mr. Sanjib Singh, Mr.
Bikash Ranjan Nayak, Mr. Krishna Chandra Pusti, Mr. Dukhabandhu

Pusti, Mr. Ashish Kumar Bhalotia

Raj Rani Agarwal, , Sushil Kumar Agrawal .

es

Uniseven Engineering & Infrastructure Private Limited, Minicraft

Enterprise Pvt Ltd, Unimark International Private Limited, Think
Finance Private Limited, Ambarella Cap Fin Private Limited, P P
Suppliers & Agencies Pvt Ltd, Jekay International Track Pwi. Ltd, NRL
Clayburn Ltd, Alfran NRL Private Limited, Industrial Asscciates, Kamal

Praksh (HUF), Vimal Praksh (HUF)

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.

Details of related party transactions during the year ended on 31st March, 2024 and balances outstanding as at 31st March, 2024

% in Lakhs
Entities in which KMP /
Particulars Relatives of KMP KMP relatives of KMP have
significant influence
| 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2022-23 2023-24 | 2022-23
Sales
Industrial Associates 7.17 5.30
NRL Clayburn Ltd 92.62 63.86
Rent Received
Alfran NRL Private Limited i | 6.00 | -
Remuneration
MK Sahoo - 2.64
Sanjib Singh 1.31 302
Bikash Ranjan Nayak 1.88 0.25
Krishna Chandra Pusti 4.68 3.84
Dukhabandhu Pusti 0.43 -
Ashish Kumar Bhalotia 0.50 -
Interest Paid
Ambarella Cap Fin Private Limited | | | 3853 | -
Loan Taken
Artiarella Cap Fin Private Limited 12.50 | -
P P Supliers & Agencies (F) Ltd 9.50 | 16.00
Loan Repaid
Ambarella Cap Fin Private Limited -
P P Supliers & Agencies (P) Utd 3.00
Rajtilak Mercantile Pvt. Ltd. 90.50
Outstanding Balance (Loan)
Ambarella Cap Fin Private Limited 37519 328.648
P P Supliers & Agencies (P) Ltd 297.23 287.73
Think Finance Pvt. Lid. 30317 30317
Outstanding Balance (Dr)
Alfran NRL Private Limited 7.19 0.71
Industrial Associates 0.10 0.81
Cutstanding Balance (Cr)
NRL Clayburn Private Limited | | | 70.24 | 736




NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN: L269390R1977PLCO00735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Notes No. - 31

(@

(b)

()

(g}

(h)

Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) was introduced under which terminal date of empleyment was fixed as 31st July
2002. Provision for unpaid compensation has been made for the employees who have not taken the same. Modified
Golden Handshake Schemes containing similar benefits as that of Voluntary Separation Scheme were introduced (in
respect of ex-employees who were separated under the Golden Handshake Scheme 3 & 4) wherein cut off date for
computation of compensation was kept as 31st July 2002. Provision for unpaid lump sum payment has been made for
the ex-employees who have not taken the same.

Confirmation of Parties concerned for amount due, receivable from and/or payable to them as per the accounts of the
company were not received. Necessary adjustment, if any, shall be dene at the time of settlement of respective

The financial result of the company pertains to operations related to refractories which is the only significant business
segment of the Company as per AS-17 issued by the ICAI,

There are no Micro, Small and Medium enterprises to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more
than 45 days as at March 31, 2024. The above information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises have been
delermined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the company. This
has been relied upon by the auditors

In view of unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation brought forward, there being no tax liability, hence no
provision for current [ncome Tax have been made during the year.

In the opinion of the management, aggregate value of current assets and other loans and advances on realization in
the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount at which these are stated in the balance sheet.

Figures for the previous pericd are re-classified/ re-arranged /re-grouped. wherever necessary to correspond with
the current year classification disclosure.

The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 649.66 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 179.48 lakhs) during the year ended March
31, 2024 and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 1283.02 lakhs. As on
3ist March 2024 the company’s total liabilities exceeds its total assels leading to a negative net worth of Rs. 592.13
Lacs. However, the management is trying to rope in strategic investor and also intends tg diversify into business which
can be carried on in alignment with the industry it is operating. The management is also undertaking a plan to carry
out optimum utilisation of its resources and cost reduction initiatives. The management is further looking at expanding
its product lines and enter new markets to increase its business and is hopeful to capture foreign market since there
exists a demand supply gap for the products the company manulactures. The company has already initiated dialogue
with the foreign buyers and there has been very encouraging respense from them

In view of the above the management firmly believes that the company continues to be a going concern and
accordingly financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

i
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Diréors

For JAIN SARAQG! & CO LLP
Firm Regn.No. 305004E/E300281

(Partner) <
Mem No:: 055272 ( o\
VDIN: 24055242 BKB RG340\,

Vimal Prakash
e Director
DIN: 00551970 DIN: 00174915

by

: 2‘q %} ﬁ% Ashish Kumar Bhalotia
Place: Kolkata \;\ ‘;\V

Dukhabandhu Prusty Company Secretary

N0 ACCOs

Date: 30th May 2024 == CFO MNo, A58992
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NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED
CIN : L269390R1977PLC000735
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Notes Na. - 31..Contd...

(i)

Additional Regulatory Informations :

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

{viii)

(ix)

{(x)

(xi)

(xif)

(xiif)

Title Deed of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company
Title Deed of Immovable Property is in name of the Company. However land having carrying value of Rs. 5.77 Lacs in the
erestwhile / formal name of the company.

Disclosure on Revaluation of Assets:
None of the Assets of the Company has been revalued during the year

Loans/ Advance to Directors/ KMP/ Related parties

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) with any other person, either severally or jointly that are (a) repayable
on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or pericd of repayment

Intangible assets under development
The Company does not have any any intangible assets under developments,

Details of Benami Property held:
The Company does not have any Benami Property and No any proceedings have been iniliated or pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder,

Working Capital/Borrowings:
The company does not have any berrewings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,

Wilful Defaulter & End use of Funds
The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or cther lender as at the date of the Financial
stalement and as on date of approal of these financial stalements.

Borrowings from banks and Financial Institutions

Disclosure on utilization of borrowings : The company does net have any borrowings from banks, Loans cblained from Financial
Institution have been utilised for the purpose it Was taaken.

Relationship with Struck off Companies:
The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There is no charges or satisfaction aginst the company, yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company does not have any investment in downstream companies for which it has to comply with the nusder of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium
{A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forei gn entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the coimpany shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.




Notas No. - 31..Contd...

NILACHAL REFRACTORIES LIMITED

CIN : L269390R1977PLCO00735

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

xiv)  Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
Na any Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Autherity in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence no
disclosure require to be given.
(xv) Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which was not recorded in the books of accounts and (a) that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 191 {b) unless there is immunity for disclosure under any scheme and (c) also shall
state whether the previously unrecorded income and related assets have been properly recorded in the books of account during the year.
(xvi) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has nol traded or invested in Crypto currency er Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(xvii)  CSR Activities
The company 1s not required to comply with the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013
(xviii)  Ratios
Ratie Numerator Denominator Current Year 5; :\rnous Variance | Reason for variance
1 Current ratio Total current assets Total current liabilities 0.28 0.42 -33.75 zcee:‘tlaart::uctlon in trade
During the Current year
company has written off
. . deferred tax asset and incurred
2 E;I;;—Eqully bD:bt co.:sms of Total equity -1.29 74.03 -109.84 |  operating losses accordingly
rowings Total Equity/ net worth of the
company eroded, Accordingly
ity ratio i ti
Earning for Debt Service
3 rvice - peraling and laase payments + -285| NA NA NA
coverageratio| expenses + Interest + Principal repayments
Other non-cash inclpat repay
adjustments
During the Current year
company has written off
Return on deferred tax asset and incurred
4 ity ratio Profit for the year Total equity 110 =312 -13517 | operating losses accordingly
& Total Equity/ net worth of the
company eroded. Accordingly
Variance s high
ing t f th
5 fwestory . | Revenue fromoperations| ~Average Inventory 0.28 0.20 38.97 During the year revenus of the
Turnover Ratio coprgany increased.
Trade During the year revenue of the
6 receivables Revenue from operations| Trade receivables 0.74 0.36 10284 | company increased and Trade
turnover ralio receivable is decreased
7 Trade Material Purchase Trade payables 0.09 0.05 8469 | Purchase duringthe year was
payables increased
Net capital Working capital (i.e. )
8 pital Revenue from operations| Total current assets -0.10 -0.09 1246\  Not Applicable
turnover ratio
less Total current
During the Current year
company has written off
9 Net profit ratio|  Profit for the year Revem,le from 5.03 1.70 196.42 | deferred tax asset and
operations N
accordingly loss of the current
: year was high
Return on Capital employed = Net " .
0 | capital E'n::"'c:e:::s'a" and worth + Lease liabilities 002 005| 5638 “‘;‘f'{;‘;‘?‘l‘f& is dueto
__employed + Deferred tax liabilities i
Return on Income generated from Average invested funds
i investment invested funds in treasury investments NA NA NA hA
As per our Report of even date For an_._l an behalf gl the Boardl':i.l Directors
For JAIN SARAQGI & CO LLP
Firgn Regn.No. 305004E/E300281
ered Accountants j Jakgn Vimal Prakash
Direct Director
T
V\X‘s\ﬂ“ R0/ 7, DIN DIN: 00174915
(Partner) e L. b
Memn. No.. 055272 - As .sL Gavrmae,
UDIN; UIYES 2:?'?-Bk8 PQG}BGO} Ashish Kumar Bnalstia
Place: Kolxata abandhu Prusty Company Secretary
Date© 30th May 2024 CFO MNo. A58792
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